
 

 

 

 
At: Aelodau’r  Pwyllgor Craffu 

Cymunedau 
Dyddiad: 

 
Dydd Gwener, 23 
Mehefin 2023 
 

 Rhif Union: 
 

01824 712554 

 ebost: democrataidd@sirddinbych.gov.uk 

 
 
Annwyl Gynghorydd 
 
Fe’ch gwahoddir i fynychu cyfarfod y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU, DYDD IAU, 29 
MEHEFIN 2023 am 10.00 am yn Siambr y Cyngor, Neuadd y Sir, Rhuthun a thrwy 
gynhadledd fideo. 
 
 
Yn gywir iawn 
 
 
G Williams 
Swyddog Monitro 
 
AGENDA 
 
RHAN 1 – GWAHODDIR Y WASG A'R CYHOEDD I FOD YN BRESENNOL YN Y 
RHAN HON O’R CYFARFOD 
 
1 YMDDIHEURIADAU   

 

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD  (Tudalennau 3 - 4) 

 Aelodau i ddatgan unrhyw gysylltiad personol neu sy’n peri rhagfarn ag 
unrhyw fater i’w ystyried yn y cyfarfod hwn. 

 

3 PENODI IS-GADEIRYDD   

 Penodi Is-gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau ar gyfer blwyddyn 
2023/2024 y Cyngor..  

 

4 MATERION BRYS FEL Y'U CYTUNWYD GAN Y CADEIRYDD   

 Hysbysiad o eitemau y dylid, ym marn y Cadeirydd, eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod 
fel materion brys yn unol ag Adran 100B(4) Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972. 
 
 

 

Pecyn Dogfen Cyhoeddus



 

5 COFNODION  (Tudalennau 5 - 12) 

 Derbyn cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Archwilio Cymunedau a gynhaliwyd ar 
04 Mai 2023 (copi ynghlwm).  
 

 

6 Y WYBODAETH DDIWEDDARAF AM BROSIECT AILFODELU’R 
GWASANAETH GWASTRAFF  (Tudalennau 13 - 90) 

 Archwilio’r Polisi Casgliadau Gwastraff Diwygiedig yn fanwl.  Cynnydd o ran 
cyflwyno’r gwasanaeth newydd - yn arbennig gweithredu’r Gwasanaeth AHP 
newydd a diweddaru’r newidiadau i’r gwasanaeth gwastraff ar gyfer 
aelwydydd ansafonol.   
 

 

7 RHAGLEN WAITH ARCHWILIO  (Tudalennau 91 - 112) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Cydlynydd Craffu (copi ynghlwm) yn gofyn am 
adolygiad o raglen gwaith i’r dyfodol y pwyllgor a rhoi’r wybodaeth 
ddiweddaraf i’r aelodau am faterion perthnasol. 

 

8 ADBORTH GAN GYNRYCHIOLWYR PWYLLGOR   

 Cael y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf gan gynrychiolwyr y Pwyllgor ar Fyrddau a 
Grwpiau amrywiol y Cyngor 

 

 
 
AELODAETH 
 
Y Cynghorwyr 
 
Y Cynghorydd Huw Williams 
(Cadeirydd) 
 

Y Cynghorydd Karen Anne Edwards (Is-
Gadeirydd) 

Michelle Blakeley-Walker 
James Elson 
Jon Harland 
Carol Holliday 
Alan James 
 

Brian Jones 
Delyth Jones 
Merfyn Parry 
Cheryl Williams 
 

 
 
 
 
COPIAU I’R: 
 
Holl Gynghorwyr er gwybodaeth 
Y Wasg a’r Llyfrgelloedd 
Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned  



 
 
 
DEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 2000 

 

 

 
Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau 
 

DATGELU A CHOFRESTRU BUDDIANNAU 
 
  

Rwyf i, 
(enw) 

  

  

*Aelod /Aelod cyfetholedig o 

(*dileuer un) 
Cyngor Sir Ddinbych   

 
 

 

YN CADARNHAU fy mod wedi datgan buddiant *personol / personol a 
sy’n rhagfarnu nas datgelwyd eisoes yn ôl darpariaeth Rhan III cod 
ymddygiad y Cyngor Sir i Aelodau am y canlynol:- 
(*dileuer un) 

Dyddiad Datgelu:   

   

Pwyllgor (nodwch):   

   

Agenda eitem   

   

Pwnc:   

   

Natur y Buddiant: 

(Gweler y nodyn isod)* 

 

 

 

 
 

 

   

Llofnod    

   

Dyddiad   

 

Noder: Rhowch ddigon o fanylion os gwelwch yn dda, e.e. 'Fi yw perchennog y tir sy’n gyfagos i'r cais ar gyfer 
caniatâd cynllunio a wnaed gan Mr Jones', neu 'Mae fy ngŵr / ngwraig yn un o weithwyr y cwmni sydd wedi gwneud 
cais am gymorth ariannol'. Tudalen 3

Eitem Agenda 2



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU 
 
Cofnodion cyfarfod o Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedaua gynhaliwyd yn COUNCIL CHAMBER, 
COUNTY HALL, RUTHIN AND BY VIDEO CONFERENCE ar Dydd Iau, 4 Mai 2023 am 
10.00 am 
 
 

YN BRESENNOL 

 

Cynghorwyr - Michelle Blakeley-Walker, Karen Edwards (Is-Gadeirydd), 

Pauline Edwards, James Elson, Jon Harland, Alan James, Brian Jones, Delyth Jones, 

Merfyn Parry, Cheryl Williams a/ac Huw Williams (Cadeirydd) 

 

Arsylwyr – Y Cynghorydd Jeanette Chamberlain-Jones, Y Cynghorydd Bobby Feeley, Y 

Cynghorydd Huw Hilditch-Roberts, Y Cynghorydd Barry Mellor a/ac Y Cynghorydd Mark 

John Young 

 

Aelod Arweiniol - Aelod Arweiniol yr Amgylchedd a Chludiant, y Cynghorydd Barry 

Mellor 

 

  

HEFYD YN BRESENNOL 

 

Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol: Llywodraethu a Busnes (GW), Pennaeth Cynllunio, 

Gwarchod y Cyhoedd a Gwasanaethau Cefn Gwlad (EJ), Rheolwr Traffig, Parcio a 

Diogelwch ar y Ffyrdd (MJ), Arweinydd Tîm - Twristiaeth, Marchnata a Digwyddiadau 

(PM),  Pennaeth Dros Dro Priffyrdd a Gwasanaethau Amgylcheddol (AC),  Cydlynwyr 

Craffu (KE a RE), Uwch Weinyddwr Pwyllgorau (KJ) a Gweinyddwr Pwyllgorau (SJ). 

  

 

 
1 YMDDIHEURIADAU  

 
Aelod Arweiniol Datblygu Lleol a Chynllunio, y Councillor Win Mullen-James wedi 
anfon ei ymddiheuriadau ar gyfer eitem 5 - Strategaeth Arwyddion Twristiaeth Drafft 
ar gyfer Sir Ddinbych. 
 
Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Economi a’r Amgylchedd, Tony Ward wedi 
ymddiheuro. Gary Williams, Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Llywodraethu a Busnes yn 
bresennol i’w gynrychioli.  
 
Pwysleisiodd y Cadeirydd bwysigrwydd y cyfraniad gwerthfawr roedd Aelodau 
Arweiniol yn ei gynnig i drafodaethau craffu a bu iddo erfyn ar Aelodau Arweiniol i 
fod yn bresennol os ydynt yn gallu.  
 

2 DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT  
 
Ni ddatganwyd unrhyw gysylltiad personol sy’n rhagfarnu.  
 

Tudalen 5

Eitem Agenda 5



3 MATERION BRYS FEL Y'U CYTUNWYD GAN Y CADEIRYDD  
 
Ni chodwyd unrhyw faterion brys gyda’r Cadeirydd na’r Cydlynydd Craffu cyn 
dechrau’r cyfarfod.  
 

4 COFNODION  
 
Cyflwynwyd cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau a gynhaliwyd ar 9 
Mawrth 2023.     
 
Penderfynwyd: y dylid derbyn a chymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfod a 
gynhaliwyd ar 09 Mawrth 2023 fel cofnod gwir a chywir o’r gweithrediadau.  
 

5 STRATEGAETH ARWYDDION I DWRISTIAID SIR DDINBYCH DRAFFT  
 
Rhoddodd y Rheolwr Traffig, Parcio a Diogelwch Ffordd wybod i’r Pwyllgor yn 
anffodus nad oedd yr Aelod Arweiniol yn gallu mynychu i gyflwyno’r adroddiad gan 
nad oedd y Swyddogion wedi darparu digon o amser i’r Aelod wneud trefniadau i 
fynychu. 
 
Cafodd yr Aelodau eu harwain drwy’r adroddiad (a ddosbarthwyd yn flaenorol) a 
oedd yn rhoi diweddariad ar y Cynllun Drafft Arwyddion Twristiaeth a gyfeiriwyd yn 
flaenorol fel y Strategaeth Arwyddion Twristiaeth. Roedd yn gam gweithredu o fewn 
y Strategaeth Twristiaeth y Cyngor a gyflwynwyd yn flaenorol i’r Pwyllgor Craffu ym 
mis Mawrth 2020. 
 
Pwrpas y papur oedd darparu diweddariad i aelodau ar brosiectau a gwblhawyd 
hyd yma, gan gynnwys cynllun arwyddion brown Dyffryn Clwyd. Roedd hefyd yn 
cynnig rhestr syml o brosiectau arwyddion brown a oedd yn cynnwys: 

 arwyddion twristiaeth allweddol ar yr A55 yn rhestru atyniadau lleol,  

 arwydd newydd yn lle arwydd y Rhyl presennol ar y ffordd tua gorllewin cyn 
cyffordd 27, 

 arwydd newydd ar gyfer y Rhyl wedi’i leoli ar ffordd y dwyrain ar gyffordd 23a 
a  

 arwyddion brown ar gyfer Prestatyn ar ffordd y dwyrain yr A55 a fydd yn 
adlewyrchu’r arwyddion sydd mewn lle ar hyn o bryd ar yr ochr orllewinol. 
 
Dywedwyd wrth yr Aelodau bod y strategaeth yn bwriadu datblygu arwyddion brown 
ar gyfer Llangollen ac adolygu’r arwyddion presennol ar y ffyrdd i mewn i’r ardal, 
ynghyd ag adolygu’r arwyddion cefnffordd bresennol yn Rhuthun a Chorwen. 
 
Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i’r Swyddog am ei gyflwyniad manwl o’r adroddiad. Cododd 
bryder bod elfennau o’r adroddiad i weld yn wag. Yn ystod y drafodaeth, trafodwyd 
y pwyntiau canlynol yn fwy manwl:      

 Pwysleisiodd Swyddogion bod y sylw mewn perthynas â lloerenni llywio a 
defnydd o ddyfeisiau yn cydnabod y defnydd cynyddol o ddyfeisiau gan 
unigolion i lywio i ardaloedd o ddiddordeb. Pwysleisiodd aelodau nad oedd 
pob unigolyn yn defnyddio technoleg ac yn aml iawn yn dibynnu ar 
arwyddion brown i lywio i ardal.  

Tudalen 6



 Roedd cefnffyrdd yn cael eu rheoli gan Lywodraeth Cymru. Maent gyda 
pholisi mewn perthynas ag arwyddion brown, sydd yn datgan y gallai unrhyw 
atyniad twristiaeth wedi’i gyfeirio o gefnffyrdd ond cael eu cyfeirio o’r 
gefnffordd agosaf. Gan edrych ar Ruthun, y gefnffordd agosaf oedd yr A494. 
Felly ni fyddai arwyddion brown sy’n berthnasol i atyniadau Rhuthun yn gallu 
cael ei roi ar hyd yr A55. Roedd amod ar wahân yn nodi gallwch ond cyfeirio 
at atyniad o fewn radiws 10 milltir o gefnffordd. 

 Roedd Grŵp Tasg a Gorffen blaenorol wedi’i sefydlu i adolygu syniad y 
strategaeth arwyddion gwreiddiol a oedd yn edrych ar deithiau arwyddion 
twristiaeth a fyddai’n ategu Ffordd y Gogledd. Mae nifer o ffactorau wedi 
arwain at rai prosiectau yn peidio â datblygu mor gyflym a gobeithiwyd.  

 Nid yw llwybr wedi’i gynnwys yn y strategaeth ddiwygiedig. Cafodd yr 
Aelodau wybod bod gwaith a wnaethpwyd ar lwybrau yn flaenorol wedi 
cynyddu ymwybyddiaeth o’r llwybrau yn yr ardal. Cyhoeddwyd taflenni yn 
hyrwyddo ardaloedd o ddiddordeb drwy Ffordd y Gogledd a Darganfod Sir 
Ddinbych ar Lwybrau. Atgoffwyd Aelodau bod llawer iawn o wybodaeth ar 
gael ar-lein ar gyfer preswylwyr. 

 Byddai adnewyddu arwydd y Rhyl yn galluogi swyddogion i gynnwys ychydig 
o atyniadau newydd i ymwelwyr ar hyd yr arfordir.  

 Presenoldeb gwell ar gyfryngau cymdeithasol i hyrwyddo atyniadau yn cyd-
fynd gyda’r defnydd o arwyddion brown.  

 Adolygiad o’r bylchau mewn adnoddau yn cael ei wneud. Roedd recriwtio yn 
heriol. Roedd y swyddogion yn trafod pwysau ar y tîm a’r adnoddau sydd ei 
angen yn yr ardal wasanaeth. 

 Roedd yr arwyddion arfaethedig ar gyfer arwyddion Dwyrain a Gorllewin ar 
hyd yr A55 wedi bwriadu i annog twristiaid sy’n teithio i’r ddau gyfeiriad i 
ddod i’r ardal.  

 Byddai’r adroddiad asesiad o les yn cael ei ddatblygu ymhellach i gynnwys 
gwybodaeth a oedd wedi’i adael allan.  

 Nododd Swyddogion bod yr arwyddion yn cael eu gwneud gan ddeunyddiau 
cyfansawdd ond yn agored i ddefnydd o ffurfiau eraill o ddeunyddiau. 

 Roedd gwaith cychwynnol wedi dechrau ar adolygiad Llangollen 12 mis yn 
ôl, oherwydd problemau capasiti nid oedd wedi’i ddatblygu. Gobeithir fel rhan 
o’r strategaeth ddiwygiedig y gallai’r gwaith ailddechrau. Darparwyd sicrwydd 
y bydd gwaith gydag Aelodau Lleol yn cael ei wneud. 

 Awgrymodd Aelodau i gael diweddariad ym mhob un Grŵp Ardal yr Aelodau 
ar y strategaeth ddiwygiedig a’r goblygiadau y gallai gael ar bob ardal. 

 Roedd cyllid ar gyfer arwyddion brown yn cael eu ceisio’n draddodiadol ar 
ddull ad hoc gan weithredwr twristiaeth i’r awdurdod priffyrdd. Byddai 
trafodaethau gyda’r asiantaeth cefnffordd yn cael eu cynnal os byddai cais 
yn dod i law am arwydd cefnffordd. Bydd rhaid bodloni meini prawf i gael 
caniatâd ar gyfer arwydd brown. Byddai amcangyfrifon cost yn cael ei wneud 
a’i gyflwyno i’r gweithredwr twristiaeth i bennu os oeddynt yn dymuno 
parhau.       

 Cafwyd adborth gan fusnesau ynghylch arwyddion brown gan nifer o 
wahanol ffynonellau a chynhaliwyd fforymau yn rheolaidd. Teimlwyd bod 
arwyddion brown yn un elfen o dwristiaeth yn yr ardal ynghyd â thechnoleg, 
cyfryngau cymdeithasol a chyfathrebu gyda phreswylwyr lleol. 

Tudalen 7



 Roedd gan Lywodraeth Cymru gynllun ymgysylltu cenedlaethol i hysbysu 
pobl o’r newidiadau i Gyfraith Cymru o ran y cyfyngiadau cyflymder.   

 Amlygodd Aelodau'r pwysigrwydd o arwyddion brown o fewn yr awdurdod.     

 Roedd gwybodaeth o fewn y papurau yn nodi gwybodaeth ynghylch gosod 
arwyddion brown newydd ar hyd yr A55. Fel awdurdod, roedd Sir Ddinbych 
yn cefnogi arwyddion brown. Roedd y cynnig ar gyfer arwyddion brown 
ychwanegol ac nid cael gwared ar arwyddion presennol.  

 Defnyddiwyd y broses C360 ar gyfer ymholiadau cychwynnol i swyddogion 
gysylltu gyda phreswylwyr neu aelodau i ddechrau’r sgyrsiau.  

 Cadarnhaodd Datganiad Gweinidogol a gyhoeddwyd ar 30 Mawrth bod 
Llywodraeth Cymru yn bwriadu dod â deddfwriaeth drafft ymlaen mewn 
perthynas ag ardoll ymwelwyr.  

Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i’r swyddogion ac aelodau’r pwyllgor am y drafodaeth fanwl 
a nodwyd yr argymhellion ychwanegol i’w hychwanegu i’r rheiny a nodwyd yn yr 
adroddiad. 
 
PENDERFYNODD Y PWYLLGOR  - yn amodol ar y sylwadau uchod   

I. cadarnhau, wrth ystyried y mater, ei fod wedi darllen yr Asesiad o’r Effaith ar 
Les, ei ddeall a’i gymryd i ystyriaeth, a gofyn am adolygu a diwygio’r 
Asesiad o’r Effaith ar Les yn gyson wrth i’r Cynllun Arwyddion 
Twristiaeth ddatblygu ac esblygu; 

II. gofyn am adroddiad i’r Pwyllgor ymhen chwe mis ynglŷn â’r cynnydd 
wrth ddatblygu a gweithredu Cynllun Arwyddion Twristiaeth Sir 
Ddinbych.  Dylai’r adroddiad gynnwys cynllun gweithredu manwl ar 
gyfer rhoi’r cynllun ar waith a chyflawni ei amcanion, y costau sy’n 
gysylltiedig â chyflawni’r cynllun, manylion y ffrydiau cyllid y bwriedir eu 
defnyddio i’w gynnal, ynghyd ag Asesiad diwygiedig o’r Effaith ar Les a 
manylion ynglŷn â’r wybodaeth sydd ar wefan y Cyngor am sut y gallai 
busnesau lleol elwa ar gyfleoedd gydag arwyddion i dwristiaid; 

III. gofyn am gyflwyno Cynllun Arwyddion Twristiaeth Sir Ddinbych gerbron 
holl Grwpiau Ardal yr Aelodau er trafodaeth, er mwyn ymchwilio i sut y 
gallai’r holl ardaloedd, yn drefol a gwledig, elwa i’r eithaf ar yr effaith 
economaidd a’r buddion a ddaw drwy’r Cynllun; 

IV. gofyn am gyflwyno unrhyw wybodaeth oedd ar gael ynglŷn â’r Ardoll 
Ymwelwyr newydd i aelodau etholedig, gan gynnwys y manteision ac 
anfanteision economaidd posib o gyflwyno ardoll ymwelwyr yn Sir 
Ddinbych o safbwynt economi’r sir a’i chymunedau; a 

V. gofyn am wneud ymholiadau â datblygwyr systemau llywio â lloeren 
ynglŷn â sut y gellid cynnwys atyniadau twristiaid yn Sir Ddinbych wrth 
ddiweddaru ac uwchraddio systemau yn y dyfodol. 
 

6 GWEITHGOR RISG O LIFOGYDD  
 
Cyflwynodd Barry Mellor, Aelod Arweiniol Cludiant a’r Amgylchedd ynghyd â 
Phennaeth Dros Dro Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd ac Amgylcheddol yr adroddiad 
(dosbarthwyd ymlaen llaw) Mae’r adroddiad yn sôn am ofyniad Cyngor Sir 
Ddinbych i lunio Strategaeth Rheoli Risg Llifogydd newydd erbyn 2024. Rhoddodd 
yr adroddiad y newyddion diweddaraf i’r Pwyllgor am waith sydd wedi cael ei gynnal 
ers i’r adroddiad diwethaf gan weithgor aml asiantaethau a pherchnogion glannau'r 
afon gael ei gyflwyno i’r Pwyllgor ar 10 Mawrth 2022.  

Tudalen 8



 
Pwysleisiodd yr Aelod Arweiniol bod yr adroddiad yn gofyn am gefnogaeth y 
Pwyllgor i ailsefydlu Gweithgor Cyngor Sir Ddinbych i oruchwylio’r datblygiad o 
Strategaeth Rheoli Risg Llifogydd newydd.  
 
Hefyd, dywedodd y Pennaeth Dros Dro Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd ac Amgylcheddol 
bod y cynnig ar gyfer un sylw o bob Grŵp Ardal yr Aelodau ynghyd â Swyddogion 
Priffyrdd, Amgylchedd a Chynllunio a Gwasanaethau Gwarchod y Cyhoedd i ffurfio 
Gweithgor. Cynigiwyd i enwebu Cadeirydd yn y cyfarfod cyntaf, a fyddai’n well bod 
yn gynrychiolydd Aelod Etholedig. Pwysleisiwyd bod ffocws y grŵp i ddatblygu 
strategaeth y Cyngor ar y cyd gyda phartneriaid perthnasol. Byddai’r strategaeth 
hefyd yn hysbysu’r Asesiad Strategol o Ganlyniadau Llifogydd yr Awdurdod a 
gafodd ei adolygu’n flaenorol ym mis Tachwedd 2022. Roedd yr Asesiad angen ei 
ddiweddaru i adlewyrchu’r newidiadau i Nodyn Cyngor Technegol 15 Llywodraeth 
Cymru. 
 
Cafodd yr Aelodau wybod bod adolygiad o’r strategaeth risg llifogydd wedi cael ei 
gomisiynu. Roedd ymgynghorwyr allanol wedi eu ceisio i gynorthwyo, yn rhannol 
oherwydd problemau recriwtio a chadw.  
 
Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i’r Aelod Arweiniol a Phennaeth Dros Dro Gwasanaethau 
Priffyrdd ac Amgylcheddol am y cyflwyniad manwl i’r adroddiad.  
Cadarnhawyd y byddai’n benderfyniad ar bob un Grŵp Ardal yr Aelodau yn unigol i 
benodi cynrychiolydd i fynychu cyfarfodydd Gweithgor. 
 
Gan ymateb i gwestiynau’r aelodau, fe wnaeth y Cadeirydd, yr Aelod Arweiniol a’r 
swyddogion gynghori:   

 Eu bod yn ymwybodol o gamau gweithredu heb eu cwblhau o’r grŵp 
blaenorol, byddai’r camau gweithredu hyn yn cael eu cynnwys yn y ffocws 
cychwynnol y grŵp newydd. 

 Roedd cyfathrebu gyda rhanddeiliaid yn digwydd ar hyn o bryd i sicrhau bod 
y strategaeth yn cyd-fynd gyda gwaith y rhanddeiliaid.  

 Pwysleisiodd yr Aelodau’r pwysigrwydd bod cyfathrebu rhwng rhanddeiliaid 
yr awdurdod a’r grŵp yn hanfodol. 

 Roedd y gweithgor blaenorol wedi cyflawni gwell sgyrsiau a dealltwriaeth o 
faterion drwy gyfarfodydd gan gynnwys amryw o randdeiliaid, megis Cyfoeth 
Naturiol Cymru, Dŵr Cymru ac Undebau Ffermio. Roedd sefydlu gweithgor 
newydd yn adeiladu ar seilwaith a wnaethpwyd yn flaenorol. 

 
Gofynnodd Aelodau bod pob rhanddeiliaid yn gofyn i gael bod yn rhan yn y grŵp i 
gael eu hysbysu o’r grŵp ac yn cael eu hannog i fynychu’r cyfarfodydd. 
 
PENDERFYNODD Y PWYLLGOR yn amodol ar y sylwadau uchod, 

       I.        cefnogi’r cynnig i ailffurfio Gweithgor Sir Ddinbych i oruchwylio 
datblygiad Strategaeth Rheoli Perygl Llifogydd newydd.  

     II.        ceisio cynrychiolydd o bob un o Grwpiau Ardal yr Aelodau i fod yn 
rhan o’r Gweithgor; a 

    III.        hysbysu’r holl fudd-ddeiliaid o’r Gweithgor, eu gwahodd i gymryd rhan 
a rhoi digon o rybudd ynglŷn â dyddiadau cyfarfodydd fel bod cynifer o bobl 
â phosib yn dod.  

Tudalen 9



 
 

7 RHAGLEN WAITH CRAFFU  
 
Arweiniodd y Cydlynydd Craffu'r Aelodau trwy’r adroddiad Rhaglen Gwaith i’r 
Dyfodol Craffu (a ddosbarthwyd ymlaen llaw).   
 
Roedd y cyfarfod nesaf wedi’i drefnu ar gyfer 29 Mehefin 2023, roedd tair eitem ar y 
rhaglen wedi’i gynnig. Roedd rhagor o wybodaeth wedi’i geisio o ran y ffioedd maes 
parcio Llangollen cyn y cyfarfod. Roedd Aelodau wedi clywed bod diwygiad bach i’r 
Strategaeth Wastraff, pwrpas y Strategaeth Wastraff ar gyfer y cyfarfod nesaf oedd 
cynllun cyfathrebu ynghylch cynnyrch hylendid amsugnol a newidiadau 
Gwasanaeth Gwastraff i aelwydydd ansafonol.   Roedd yr holl Aelodau yn hapus 
gyda’r newid. 
 
Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd Brian Jones os allai Aelodau wneud cais am wybodaeth 
ar effeithiau ariannol i gael ei gynnwys gyda’r adroddiad gwastraff, gan nad oedd yn 
gysylltiedig â’r Strategaeth Gyfathrebu sy’n cael ei chyflwyno. Awgrymodd y 
Cydlynydd Craffu bod aelodau yn gwneud cais am adroddiad ar wahân ar yr 
agweddau ariannol o’r Strategaeth. Awgrymodd y Cadeirydd y gallai fod yn gylch 
gwaith y Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad i drafod yr agwedd honno o’r Strategaeth.  
 
Roedd Atodiad 2 yn cynnwys copi o'r ffurflen gynnig gan Aelodau, roedd y 
Cadeiryddion ac Is-Gadeiryddion Craffu i fod i gyfarfod eto ar 25 Gorffennaf 2023. 
Anogwyd yr Aelodau i lenwi’r ffurflen gydag unrhyw eitemau yr oeddynt yn credu y 
dylid eu hystyried.   
 
Roedd Atodiad 3 o’r adroddiad yn rhaglen waith y Cabinet petai’r Pwyllgor eisiau 
craffu unrhyw faterion sydd ar ddod.  
 
Atodiad 4 – hysbyswyd yr aelodau o'r argymhellion a wnaed yn y cyfarfod Craffu 
blaenorol a’r cynnydd a wnaethpwyd i’w gweithredu.   
 
Roedd Atodiad 5 i'r adroddiad yn gais am ddatganiad o ddiddordeb ar gyfer 
sylwadau’r pwyllgor ar y grwpiau Her Gwasanaeth. Ynghlwm roedd rhestr o'r 
datganiadau a ddaeth i law hyd yma. Roedd tri grŵp Gwasanaeth oedd angen 
sylwadau gan Aelodau Craffu Cymunedol, y rheiny oedd: 

 Tai a Chymunedau 

 Gwasanaethau Cymorth Corfforaethol Perfformiad, Digidol ac Asedau  

 Gwasanaethau Cymorth Corfforaethol: Pobl 
 
Gofynnodd y Cadeirydd i aelodau am unrhyw ddatganiadau o ddiddordeb. 
Eglurwyd y byddai pob Grŵp Gwasanaeth yn cynnal cyfarfod ar-lein yn flynyddol. I 
ddilyn:    

 Enwebodd y Cynghorydd Cheryl Williams ei hun i fynychu’r Grŵp Her 
Gwasanaeth Tai a Chymunedau.  

 Enwebodd y Cynghorydd Brian Jones ei hun i fynychu’r Gwasanaeth 
Cymorth Corfforaethol: Perfformiad, Digidol ac Asedau  a  

 rhoddodd y Cynghorydd Karen Edwards ei henw ymlaen i fynychu 
Gwasanaeth Cymorth Corfforaethol: Digidol ar ran y Pwyllgor. 

Tudalen 10



 
Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i’r holl aelodau am gynrychioli’r Pwyllgor ar y Grwpiau Her 
Gwasanaeth. Pwysleisiodd yr aelodau os nad oeddent yn gallu mynychu cyfarfod i 
gysylltu ag ef a byddai’n ceisio ei orau i fynychu. 
 
Penderfynwyd:  
 

(i) yn amodol ar gynnwys yr adroddiadau y gofynnwyd amdanynt yn ystod 
y cyfarfod ynghyd â’r ychwanegiadau a’r diwygiadau a amlinellwyd 
uchod, cadarnhau Rhaglen Gwaith i’r Dyfodol y Pwyllgor fel y nodir 
yn Atodiad 1;  
 

(ii) penodi’r aelodau a enwir isod i wasanaethu fel cynrychiolwyr y 
Pwyllgor ar y Grwpiau Her Gwasanaeth canlynol: 

 Tai a Chymunedau - Y Cynghorydd Cheryl Williams 

 Gwasanaethau Cymorth Corfforaethol:  Perfformiad, Digidol ac 
Asedau - y Cynghorydd Brian Jones 

 Gwasanaethau Cymorth Corfforaethol:  Pobl - Y Cynghorydd 
Karen Edwards 

 
8 ADBORTH GAN GYNRYCHIOLWYR PWYLLGORAU  

 
Dim. 
 
Dywedodd y Cynghorydd James Elson y byddai’n rhoi adborth ar y Grŵp Craffu 
Cyfalaf newydd yng nghyfarfod nesaf y Pwyllgor. 
 
Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i’r Swyddogion, Aelodau Arweiniol ac Aelodau am fynychu’r 
cyfarfod.  Diolchwyd hefyd i’r Cydlynydd Craffu am ei chefnogaeth yn ystod a chyn 
y cyfarfod. 
 
 

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 11.20am. 
 

   

Tudalen 11



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

Adroddiad i’r Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau 

Dyddiad y cyfarfod 29 Mehefin 2023 

Aelod/Swyddog Arweiniol     Y Cyng. Barry Mellor (Aelod Arweiniol Priffyrdd a’r 

Amgylchedd) / Tony Ward (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol yr 

Amgylchedd a’r Economi) 

Pennaeth Gwasanaeth Andy Clark  

Awdur yr adroddiad Simon Lammond, Rheolwr Gwastraff ac Ailgylchu / Lowri 

Roberts, Rheolwr Prosiect 

Teitl Y Wybodaeth Ddiweddaraf am Brosiect Ailfodelu’r 

Gwasanaeth Gwastraff 

1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn? 

1.1. Mae’r adroddiad hwn yn gyfle i’r aelodau graffu ar y Polisi Casgliadau Gwastraff 

diwygiedig. Mae’r adroddiad yn cynnwys y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am gyflwyno 

gwasanaeth cynnyrch hylendid amsugnol a’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y 

newidiadau i aelwydydd ansafonol.  

2. Beth yw’r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn? 

2.1. Pwrpas yr adroddiad yw hysbysu’r aelodau ynghylch cynnwys y Polisi Casgliadau 

Gwastraff newydd, y cynnydd hyd yma a’r gweithgareddau sydd ar y gweill er mwyn 

cyflwyno’r gwasanaeth cynnyrch hylendid amsugnol newydd ac i dderbyn eu barn 

ynghylch hynny.  

3. Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 

3.1. Bod y Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau yn trafod cynnwys yr adroddiad a’r Polisi 

Casgliadau Gwastraff diwygiedig (Atodiad 1) yn ogystal â’r deunyddiau 

cyhoeddusrwydd ar gyfer y gwasanaeth cynnyrch hylendid amsugnol (Atodiad 2), 

ac yn mynegi eu barn arnynt.  

Tudalen 13

Eitem Agenda 6



 
 

3.2. Bod y Pwyllgor yn cadarnhau ei fod wedi darllen, deall ac ystyried yr Asesiad o 

Effaith ar Les diweddar (Atodiad 3) fel rhan o’i ystyriaethau.  

4. Manylion yr adroddiad  

Polisi Casgliadau Gwastraff  

4.1. Mae Atodiad 1 yn darparu manylion y Polisi Casgliadau Gwastraff presennol (Rhan 

1) a’r Polisi Casgliadau Gwastraff newydd (Rhan 2).  

4.2. Mae’r prif newidiadau yn cynnwys cryfhau cyfrifoldebau / egluro’r polisi a’r 

newidiadau i’r gwasanaeth:  

a) Mae adrannau 1a ac 1b yn manylu ar amlder y gwasanaeth casglu sbwriel ac 

ailgylchu a’r math o gynwysyddion a ddefnyddir. Mae adran 2 yn ymwneud â 

chasgliadau amgen ar gyfer eiddo sy’n anaddas ar gyfer y gwasanaeth safonol. 

Mae adran 3 yn ymwneud â biniau cymunedol swmpus. 

b) Mae adran 4 yn egluro’r gofyniad cyfreithiol yng Nghymru i ailgylchu gwastraff 

bwyd (o fis Hydref 2023 ymlaen). Mae adran 5 yn ymwneud â’r gwasanaeth 

casglu cyfarpar electronig a thrydanol a’r gwasanaeth casglu batris.  

c) Mae adran 7 ‘cyflwyno’ ac adran 8 ‘ffyrdd preifat heb eu mabwysiadu’ wedi’u 

hatgyfnerthu yn nhermau beth sy’n dderbyniol a’r hysbysiad ffurfiol o fannau 

casglu ar gyfer eiddo gyda mynediad wedi’i gyfyngu. Mae adran 15 yn cyfeirio at 

ddefnyddio biniau gyda microsglodion.  

d) Mae adran 18 yn egluro’r gwasanaeth Gwastraff Hylendid nad yw’n Heintus o 

2024 ymlaen. 

e) Mae adran 22 yn amlinellu’r newidiadau i’r gwasanaeth casglu gwastraff 

swmpus.  

Cyflwyno’r Gwasanaeth Cynnyrch Hylendid Amsugnol  

4.3. O hydref 2023 bydd y gwasanaeth cynnyrch hylendid amsugnol newydd yn cael ei 

gyflwyno i ardal beilot (ardaloedd cod post LL16 / LL17). Mae’r ardal hon yn 

cynnwys Llanelwy, Dinbych, Bodfari, Llandyrnog, Llanrhaeadr, Henllan, Nantglyn, y 

Grîn, Trefnant, Allt Goch, Rhuallt a Thremeirchion.  

Tudalen 14



 
 

4.4. Bydd yr ardal hon yn denu oddeutu 1,000 o danysgrifwyr, gan ddarparu cymysgedd 

o ardaloedd gwledig a threfol ar gyfer cwmpas y prosiect peilot yn barod at 

gyflwyno’r gwasanaeth i’r sir gyfan yn 2024. Gall trigolion nad ydynt yn byw yn 

ardaloedd LL16 / LL17 barhau i roi eu cynnyrch hylendid amsugnol yn eu biniau 

sbwriel du neu eu sachau pinc. Nid oes modd i drigolion sy’n byw mewn fflat gyda 

chasgliadau gwastraff cymunedol wneud cais am y gwasanaeth hwn eto, ond bydd 

modd iddynt wneud hynny fis Mawrth 2024.  

4.5. Gall trigolion cymwys gofrestru ar gyfer y prosiect peilot ar wefan CSDd ar 3 

Gorffennaf 2023. Mae’r meini prawf yn cynnwys aelwydydd gyda babanod neu blant 

mewn clytiau, ac oedolion sy’n defnyddio cynnyrch anymataliaeth. Ar ôl cofrestru 

bydd y trigolion yn derbyn cadi neu fin 140 litr (yn dibynnu ar yr angen) yn ogystal â 

leiners. Bydd y cadi/bin cynnyrch hylendid amsugnol yn cael eu gwagio bob 

wythnos. Mae Atodiad 2 yn cynnwys yr holl amodau a thelerau yn ogystal â 

chwestiynau cyffredin.  

4.6. Bydd swyddogion gorfodi yn gwasanaethu’r ardal hon fel rhan o’r prosiect peilot i 

gynghori trigolion ac i fonitro’r gostyngiad yn y cynnyrch hylendid amsugnol yn y 

ffrwd gwastraff gweddilliol. Mae’r dull hwn yn caniatáu i ni fonitro pethau yn well ac 

mae cyflwyno’r gwasanaeth i ardal benodol yn gyntaf yn ffordd fwy effeithlon ac yn 

darparu cysylltiadau cludiant hygyrch i Barc Adfer a fydd yn prosesu’r gwastraff tan 

y bydd y gwasanaeth newydd yn cael ei lansio.  

Aelwydydd Gwasanaethau Ansafonol  

4.7. Mae gan Sir Ddinbych nifer o aelwydydd sy’n derbyn ‘gwasanaeth ansafonol’ h.y. 

naill ai gwasanaeth cymunedol neu sachau. Mae hyn yn aml iawn oherwydd 

problemau mynediad neu ddiffyg lle i storio cynwysyddion. Mae’r aelwydydd 

ansafonol hyn yn destun adolygiad ar hyn o bryd.  

4.8. Mae arolwg wedi dechrau i weld pa ddatrysiadau y mae modd eu darparu ar gyfer 

eiddo ansafonol dan y gwasanaeth newydd. Mae yna 128 o safleoedd gydag eiddo 

cymunedol –105 o’r rhain yng ngogledd y sir a 23 yn ne’r sir. O’r 124 safle sydd 

wedi’u hasesu hyd yma, gall 81 ohonynt symud i’r gwasanaeth safonol newydd a 

derbyn trolibocs ar gyfer eu deunyddiau ailgylchu.  

4.9. O’r 41 safle sy’n weddill, bydd dau ddewis yn cael ei ystyried:  

Tudalen 15



 
 

I. Biniau olwyn 240 litr ychwanegol (x4) yn lle’r cynhwysydd deunyddiau 

cymysg 1110 litr ar gyfer didoli’r deunyddiau gwastraff (gwydr, papur, plastig 

ac ati); neu 

II. Bin cymunedol mawr gydag adrannau gwahanol ar gyfer y deunyddiau 

gwahanol. 

4.10. Mae yna 2,483 aelwyd yn derbyn gwasanaeth casglu sachau – 2,271 o’r rhain yn 

ne’r sir a 212 yn y gogledd. Oherwydd nifer y safleoedd sy’n defnyddio’r 

gwasanaethau sachau, mae’r asesiadau manwl yn dal yn mynd rhagddynt. Ble 

bynnag y bo’n bosibl, bydd eiddo yn symud i’r gwasanaeth trolibocs safonol ond 

bydd dewisiadau eraill yn cael ei hystyried pan na fydd hynny’n bosibl.  

4.11. Dylai eiddo ar rodfeydd/lonydd preifat neu ffyrdd heb eu mabwysiadu sy’n defnyddio 

sachau gael eu rhoi ar gasgliadau pen ffordd a, ble bynnag y bo’n bosib’, dylid 

darparu trolibocs iddynt. Mae’n bosib’ y bydd y mynediad yn dal yn broblem hyd yn 

oed ar ôl i’r casgliadau pen ffordd gael eu cyflwyno, ond byddai hyn yn hwyluso 

pethau ac yn lleihau teithio diangen a’r perygl o ddifrodi cerbydau neu eiddo.  

4.12. Dylai aelwydydd sy’n defnyddio sachau ac sydd â phroblemau storio naill ai 

dderbyn sachau dympi y gellir eu hailddefnyddio ar gyfer eu gwastraff gweddilliol a 

sachau llai ar gyfer y deunyddiau ailgylchu gwahanol, neu flychau ailgylchu heb y 

troli a sach fawr ar gyfer gwastraff gweddilliol. Dan amgylchiadau o’r fath, bydd yn 

rhaid i eiddo gael eu hasesu’n unigol a bydd yn rhaid addasu pethau er mwyn 

bodloni gofynion y casgliad.  

5. Sut mae’r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Themâu 
Corfforaethol? 

5.1. Y prif sbardun ar gyfer y newid yma yw gwella ein perfformiad o ran ailgylchu er 

mwyn cyrraedd y targed statudol o 70% a roddwyd i bob awdurdod lleol ar gyfer 

2024/25. Bydd hefyd yn cynyddu ansawdd y deunydd i’w ailgylchu a gesglir o 

aelwydydd, gan fod yn fodd i allu cynhyrchu incwm o werthu deunyddiau, a 

chynyddu cyfleoedd ar gyfer ailgylchu dolen gaeedig.  

Tudalen 16



 
 

6. Faint fydd hyn yn ei gostio a sut y bydd yn effeithio ar 
wasanaethau eraill? 

6.1. Cwmpesir costau gweithredu’r newidiadau newydd i’r gwasanaeth o ddyraniadau’r 

gyllideb ar gyfer paratoi a chynwysyddion o fewn cyllideb gyffredinol y prosiect.  

6.2. Bydd gweithredu’n gwasanaeth newydd yn effeithio ar amryw o wasanaethau’r 

cyngor, gan gynnwys Gwasanaethau i Gwsmeriaid a’r Tîm Cyfathrebu, ac mae 

cynrychiolwyr o’r meysydd gwasanaeth hyn wedi eu cynnwys yn y timau prosiect 

perthnasol ar gyfer ffrydiau gwaith paratoi.  

7. Beth yw prif gasgliadau’r Asesiad o Effaith ar Les? 

7.1. Mae canlyniad terfynol yr Asesiad o Effaith ar Les yn gadarnhaol – gweler Atodiad 3 

i gael rhagor o fanylion.  

8. Pa ymgynghoriadau sydd wedi’u cynnal gyda Chraffu ac 
eraill? 

8.1. Cafodd yr egwyddor o weithredu model gwastraff newydd, sy’n dilyn glasbrint 

Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer gwasanaethau gwastraff, ei gymeradwyo’n wreiddiol 

gan y Grŵp Buddsoddi Strategol a’r Cabinet ym mis Rhagfyr 2018. Cyflwynwyd 

Achos Busnes wedi ei ddiweddaru hefyd i’r Cabinet ym mis Ebrill 2022, a’i 

gymeradwyo.  

8.2. Ym mis Rhagfyr 2021 darparwyd y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i’r Pwyllgor Craffu 

Cymunedau, ac yr oedd yr adroddiad hwn hefyd yn cynnwys Polisi Casgliadau 

Gwastraff wedi ei ddiweddaru.  

9. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid 

9.1. Er nad oes unrhyw oblygiadau ariannol uniongyrchol yn deillio o’r adroddiad hwn, 

mae’r achos busnes dros fuddsoddiad cyfalaf mawr ym maes gwastraff dros y 

blynyddoedd diwethaf wedi ei seilio ar oblygiadau’r model a ddisgrifir yn yr 

adroddiad hwn o ran refeniw.  

10. Pa risgiau sydd ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud 
i'w lleihau? 

10.1. Y mae dwy risg allweddol yn ymwneud â gweithredu’r model gwasanaeth newydd 

erbyn mis Mawrth 2024. Y rhain yw: 

Tudalen 17



 
 

 Cymeradwyo Trwydded: Mae gweithrediadau yn y depo newydd yn amodol ar 

gymeradwyo trwydded bwrpasol, a gyflwynwyd ym mis Ionawr 2023 i Gyfoeth 

Naturiol Cymru. Mae’n rhaid cymeradwyo’r drwydded hon cyn gallu newid y 

gwasanaeth. Gall y broses hon gymryd tua 12 mis, ond yr ydym yn ymgysylltu â 

Chyfoeth Naturiol Cymru ar lefel weithredol a strategol ynglŷn â’r mater hwn. 

 Parodrwydd y Depo: Mae’r depo i fod i gael ei gwblhau yn hydref 2023. Ar hyn 

o bryd disgwylir y bydd hyn yn digwydd ar amser, felly dylai bod y depo’n barod 

ar gyfer gosod y cynwysyddion at ei gilydd a’u danfon yn barod ar gyfer y 

gwaith o gyflwyno i breswylwyr o fis Tachwedd 2023. Fodd bynnag, cynyddodd 

y risg ar ôl i brif gontractwr Cam 2 fynd i ddwylo’r gweinyddwyr fis Chwefror 

2023. Mae’r Tîm a’r Bwrdd Prosiect yn rheoli’r sefyllfa hon.  

11. Pŵer i wneud y penderfyniad 

11.1. Adran 21 Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000 

11.2. Adran 7 Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor  

Tudalen 18



Appendix I: DENBIGHSHIRE COUNCIL DOMESTIC 
WASTE COLLECTION POLICY 

 

Appendix I (a): Draft policies to be approved through delegated 
decision process by July 2023. 

 

Introduction 
 

Denbighshire County Council (hereafter DCC) is responsible for the 
collection, treatment and disposal of domestic household waste; it also 
provides facilities for recycling and bulky items. This document sets out 
how domestic waste collection works and provides details of all 
aspects of the service and how to access them. 
 
Additional domestic waste & recycling collection service details are 
available by clicking the ‘Bins and Recycling’ heading on the Council’s 

website https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/recycling. 

 

 

Part 1 current waste & recycling service 

collection policy applicable. 
 

1. Domestic waste and recycling collection service for individual 
Properties (standard service) 

 

Denbighshire County Council (DCC) currently operates a bi-weekly 
collection for household non-recyclable (residual) waste alternating 
each week with dry recycling, and garden waste collections. DCC 
expects residents to use wheeled bins for these collections, unless 
DCC has granted an exception. By exception some households will be 
provided with a sack collection service (See section 3). 

 

A weekly food waste collection service is in place for the majority of 
households.  

 
1a. Domestic Residual (Non-Recyclable) Waste  
 
The standard service for residual waste is currently one 140 litres black 
wheeled bin per household (or equivalent sacks). Provision will be 
made for households that require additional residual waste 
capacity, who are assessed and meet DCCs criteria for a larger 
black residual waste bin (section 16) 

 

Residual waste is classified as household waste that cannot be recycled 
Tudalen 19

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/recycling


or composted through standard DCC kerbside recycling services.  

Dry recyclable materials, food waste or garden waste must not be placed 
in the black wheeled bin, or sacks provided for residual waste. 
 
Some Denbighshire households may have a 180 litre or 240 litre black 
bin, issued as part of the original roll out of a wheeled bin service. It is 
acceptable to  present these containers for collection. 
 
If the bin goes missing or becomes damaged beyond repair, it will be 
replaced by a 240 litre bin subject to receipt of payment or free of 
charge should the bin fail. 

 
Charges apply for the delivery of all domestic residual wheeled bins 
(new, replacement or additional where applicable) and those charges are 
updated annually and published on the councils’ web pages. Please 
note, payment is for the service of delivering containers/bins, they all 
remain the property of Denbighshire County Council. 
 

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-and-
recycling-charges.aspx 
 
 
1b. Domestic Recyclable Waste  
 
The standard container for dry mixed recyclable waste is one 240 litre 
blue wheeled bin. Items that DCC can collect in the blue bin : 

 Clean paper and cardboard, including toilet/kitchen roll tubes, 
cereal boxes wrapping paper (but not foil wrapping paper) 
and greetings cards; 

 Glass bottles and jars (with lids separate); 

 Plastic bottles (with lids or trigger spray); 

 Plastic containers (bottles, pots, tubs and trays) 

 Tins and cans (both steel and aluminium); 

 Tin Foil (clean) 

 Newspapers and magazines; 

 Catalogues and telephone directories; 

 Envelopes. 

 Waxed cartons 
 

A more detailed list is available on the councils’ web pages.  
 

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/a-to-z-recycling-
guide/a-to-z-recycling-guide.aspx  
 

All material should be as clean and dry as possible. The materials must 
be presented “loose” in the bin. Items are not allowed to be presented 

Tudalen 20

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-and-recycling-charges.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-and-recycling-charges.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/a-to-z-recycling-guide/a-to-z-recycling-guide.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/a-to-z-recycling-guide/a-to-z-recycling-guide.aspx


in bags. 

 

If a household occasionally needs to present extra recycling, the 
recycling can be presented loose in a cardboard box with the exceptions 
of glass bottles and jars must always be presented in the blue bin for 
safety of the operational crews. 

 
Recycling capacity is not restricted. Residents are able to pay for the 
use of, and present additional 240 litre blue bins. Bins must be 
purchased through the council so that they meet the required safety 
standards for emptying  
 

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/ordering-a-new-
bin-or-bag.aspx 

 

Re-useable sacks are available from the council for households who 
need to present smaller amounts of extra recycling on a regular basis, 
and do not have room to store an additional bin. A charge applies for 
reusable sacks requested, unless distributed as part of a temporary 
campaign or service change. Alternatively, additional blue bins can be 
supplied by the Council for a supply charge.  

 

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-and-
recycling-charges.asp 
 

2. Individual Properties Unsuitable for 2 or 4 wheeled bins  
 

This service is available where the curtilage of a property is inaccessible 
to our standard waste collection vehicles that empty wheeled bins 
(Examples listed below) 

 
Recyclable waste accepted in the clear sacks is: 
 

 Clean paper and cardboard, including toilet/kitchen roll tubes, 
cereal boxes wrapping paper (but not foil wrapping paper) 
and greetings cards; 

 Glass bottles and jars (with lids separate); 

 Plastic bottles (with lids or trigger spray); 

 Plastic containers (bottles, pots, tubs and trays) 

 Tins and cans (both steel and aluminium); 

 Tin Foil (clean) 

 Newspapers and magazines; 

 Catalogues and telephone directories; 
Tudalen 21

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/ordering-a-new-bin-or-bag.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/ordering-a-new-bin-or-bag.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-and-recycling-charges.asp
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-and-recycling-charges.asp


 Envelopes. 

 Waxed cartons 
 

Households will be considered unsuitable for 2 or 4 wheeled bins in the 
following circumstances: 

 
a) Access to the location is not possible with a Refuse Collection 

Vehicle supporting bins lifts. 
b) The property has no storage for wheeled bins (garages and other 

outbuildings would constitute as suitable storage, as well as an 
outside space within the curtilage of the property/ land that would 
not block a fire exit or safe passage in and out of the main 
dwelling). 

c) It is unsafe to expect the occupants or the waste collection crews 
to manoeuvre the bins to suitable a collection point, usually 
because of steps or long distances between the curtilage of the 
property and agreed collection point. 

d) The household consists of only elderly or infirm occupants who opt 
to have a sack system in order to avoid requesting the Assisted 
Collection Service, as they are able to manage the sacks 
independently. 

e) Regular contamination of recycling bins by a household results in 
the temporary or permanent removal of bins and the household is 
issued with transparent recycling sacks labelled with the address 
so that contamination can be carefully monitored. 

f) Other exceptional circumstances agreed by the Council. 

 
These properties will be allocated to the council’s sack collection 
service.  
 
Residual (non-recyclable) waste will be presented in a translucent 
disposable “pink” sack.  
 
Dry recyclables will be presented in a  clear disposable sack. Sack 
residual and dry recyclable waste will be collected every week on the 
same day of the week. The only exception to this is areas DCC deems 
necessary to run trials.  
 
One 70 ltr residual pink sack per week is equivalent to DCC’s bi-weekly 
140ltr black bin collection. Any more waste will be considered side 
waste and will not be collected.  
 
The amount of recycling that can be presented is not restricted. If a 
household occasionally needs to present extra recycling, the recycling 
can be presented loose in a cardboard box.  

One roll of 52 disposable pink sacks and one roll of clear sacks are 

Tudalen 22



provided free of charge by DCC per year. Additional sacks are supplied 
at a cost. 

In exceptional circumstances where DCC has been obliged to remove 
wheeled bins from a property, due to residents repeatedly failing to use 
the bins properly, or due to the bins being left out repeatedly on the 
public highway for extended periods (other than on collection day, or 
awaiting a missed collection), DCC reserves the right to charge 
residents for the supply of DCC authorised disposable sacks. In certain 
cases, the landlord may be liable for these charges through the 
requirements set out in the Landlords Licencing Scheme. 

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/housing-homelessness-and-
landlords/landlords/landlords.aspx 

 

Households using a sack service wishing to subscribe to the chargeable 
garden waste service may be offered 3 x re-useable sacks (depending 
on locations section 4b) However, if the location is inaccessible to all 
garden waste collection vehicles the household will not be eligible for 
this service. 

 

 
3. Properties most suited to communal “bulk” bins (360l 2 wheeled 
bins or 660l, 1100l 1280l four wheeled bins). 

 

DCC’s preferred method of storage and containment is 2-wheeled 
bins/recycling containers allocated to individual tenancies. However, 
where operational requirements or localised infrastructure dictates, DCC 
may determine that certain flats or houses of multiple occupation utilise 
bulk containers for the storage and collection of their waste and 
recycling. 
Residents will present their residual waste in Black 4 wheeled bins, and 
dry mixed recycling in Blue 4 wheeled bins. Recyclable waste permitted 
in the blue 4 wheeled bins are: 

 

 Clean paper and cardboard, including toilet/kitchen roll tubes, 
cereal 
boxes wrapping paper (but not foil) and greetings cards; 

 Glass bottles and jars (with lids separate); 

 Plastic bottles (with lids or trigger spray); 

 Plastic containers (bottles, pots, tubs and trays) 

 Tins and cans (both steel and aluminium); 

 Tin Foil (clean) 

 Newspapers and magazines; 

 Catalogues and telephone directories; 

 Envelopes. 

 Waxed cartons 
Tudalen 23

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/housing-homelessness-and-landlords/landlords/landlords.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/housing-homelessness-and-landlords/landlords/landlords.aspx


 

Households that are unsuitable for a sack collection or regular wheeled 
bin system may include: 

 

3a. A single property that is one of multi-occupation (HMO) where there 
are more than 5 tenants sharing one address, and space restrictions on 
site mean that 360l two wheeled bins or bulk containers (660l or bigger) 
are more suitable, and take up less space than attempting to supply 
individual bins to each independent tenancy. Where storage restrictions 
apply, or cross contamination of waste becomes an issue, these 
properties may be added to a sack collection system (Section 2). 

 

3b. The property is part of a private development and the land owner/ 
landlord (and/or property management agent) has allocated a communal 
bin storage area at the location for shared use by all residents. 

 
An assessment to determine container requirements will be made by a 
Council Officer, following which the managing agent or landlord will be 
advised of the quantity, type and size of containers, (together with where 
the containers are to be located for collection). Only waste presented 
within the containers will be removed. Additional waste placed outside of 
the container or any other household items placed around or near to the 
containers will not be taken by the Council. It is the responsibility of the 
landlord or property management company to remove this waste. The 
waste collection crew must have unobstructed access to the waste 
containers. 

 
In all scenarios the shared container(s) must be stored within the 
curtilage of the property. If access to the bin store area is not provided, 
then the landlord (and/or property management agent) is responsible for 
ensuring the container is presented at a designated collection point and 
returned as soon as possible after it is emptied. 

Tudalen 24



In instances where the waste collection vehicle or collection crew cannot 
access the property, the agreed location of the containers will be such 
that the Council’s waste collection service will be able to manoeuvre the 
containers to the collection vehicle via a minimal unobstructed distance 
(20M, or less if the ground is uneven [e.g. gravelled, cobbled]) and 
across surfaces that do not prevent the free wheeled movement of the 
container.  

 

The container must not be required to be pulled to the collection vehicle 
via an inclined gradient that causes the load bearing weight to exceed 
that suitable for the handling of by a single operative, nor will the 
container be stored upon steps or behind a kerb. Where the container is 
to be stored in a locked secure area, access to the secure area must be 
available at the time the collection occurs. 

 
It is the responsibility of the landlord or property management company 
to ensure that all reasonable steps are taken to prevent unauthorised 
use of the bins store by households external to that property. 

 
The Council must be provided with keys or key code access to any 
locked storage areas. 

 

In the event that these conditions are not satisfied, and a collection of 
waste is missed, the council is not required to return until the next 
scheduled collection day and it will be the responsibility of the managing 
agent/ landlord to make alternative arrangements to dispose of the 
waste in advance of the next scheduled collection. 

 

The council levy an annual rental charge for the supply of all 4-wheeled 
bin containers. Replacement charges will apply if bins are lost, and 
repair charges will be payable if the bins become damaged due to 
vandalism (Ref 24/ Appendix 2). 

 
On occasion, the council may provide an on street waste collection 
“station” for use restricted to specific households. The Council will be 
responsible for the provision and maintenance of these stations and the 
landlord’s/ property management agent (where applicable) is be 
responsible for ensuring new tenants are provided with details on how to 
access these stations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 25



4. Organic Waste  
 
4a. Food Waste 
 
DCC provides a weekly food waste collection service for the 
majority of households, with the exception of some remote rural 
properties in the south of the county and areas of Denbigh where 
access for the waste collection vehicle is not possible.  
 

Food waste includes ALL cooked and raw foods, including bones but 
excluding used cooking oil. Cut flowers are also permitted. 

 

Orange (black with orange lid from 2023 onwards) 23 litre kerbside 
food waste caddies, silver kitchen caddies and an annual supply of 
compostable liners are supplied free of charge. 
 
Households in areas where the service operates are expected to recycle 
any food waste they want DCC to take away. The council will have 
100% coverage of the food waste service by 2024. 

 

Food contamination of other waste streams; if identified, DCC will reject 
residual or recycling containers (or/and sacks) containing food. A tag or 
sticker will be placed on the rejected container. Householders must 
remove the food waste and place it into the food caddy before re-
presenting the containers correctly on the next scheduled collection day. 
Households identified as not recycling food will be subject to the DCC’s 
Household Waste and Recycling Enforcement procedures.  
Households identified as not recycling food, despite being eligible for the 
food waste service will be subject to the DCC’s Household Waste and 
Recycling Enforcement procedures. 

 
Residents can request replacement compostable liners in the following 
ways: 

 Tie a food waste liner (or the re-order tag at the end of the roll) to 
the to the handle of the orange/black and orange kerbside caddy 
and the collection crew will leave a roll in or next to the caddy 
after the caddy has been emptied (Preferred and most efficient, 
environmentally friendly method). Please remember to remove 
the tag/liner once you have received your new roll. 

 Collect a roll of liners from your local library, one stop shop or 
public Council reception area. 

 If the other methods cannot be used, caddy liner stocks can be 
replenished by requesting a roll online on the council website or 
telephoning the contact centre. 

 

 
 

Tudalen 26



4b. Garden Waste 
Garden waste is collected on a fortnightly basis through a chargeable 
subscription service. Garden waste bins are green with 140 litre 
capacity.    Residents can increase capacity through provision of 
additional bin to be emptied as part of the service. This will incur an 
additional subscription charges. 

 

 Garden Waste is classed as: 

 

 Grass cuttings and leaves 

 Cut flowers 

 Trimmings 

 Hedge cuttings 

 Weeds 

 Small braches/twigs 

 Wind fallen fruit 

 
Further details are available on the Council’s website 
www.denbighshire.gov.uk/gardenwaste. 

 

The Council charges for the kerbside collection of garden waste. The 
service operates all year round (Up to 26 collections per year, weather 
permitting). 

 
“Difficult to access” Households (i.e. those on a sack collection for 
refuse) wishing to subscribe to the garden waste service may be offered 
3 or 6 x 50 litre re-useable green dumpy sacks (depending on locations). 
This service will incur a subscription charge. 
 
5. Prohibited items – all waste containers 

 
The following items are prohibited from placement in all containers: 

 

 Hazardous waste (e.g. asbestos and plasterboard) 

 Liquids (including paint and oil) 

 Soil, rubble and stone 

 Hot ashes 

 Electrical items and batteries (these must be collected as per 

Section 5). 

 Loose dust (e.g. plaster, cement dust or vacuum dust). 
 

These items can pose a threat to human health and safety or could 
cause damage to the waste collection vehicle and waste treatment 
infrastructure if not disposed of carefully. For example, batteries and hot 
ashes can cause fires either in the waste collection vehicle or waste 

Tudalen 27

http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/gardenwaste


transfer station. Soil and rubble can cause a wheeled bin to become 
overweight and cause manual handling injuries, or impact injuries if it 
falls off the bin lift during the emptying process. 
 
Failure to comply with this Policy will result in non-collection of waste, and 
residents will be responsible for making their own arrangements for safe 
and appropriate disposal. Some prohibited items can be taken to any of 
Denbighshire’s Household Recycling Centres (See Policy 26 for the Use 
of Household Waste Recycling Centre Policy). 

 
Many retailers provide free household battery disposal points, including 
large supermarkets and electrical stores. Large retailers or electrical 
equipment have a duty to takeback all items where the length of the 
longest side is 25cm or more. 

 
In all cases, where prohibited items are identified by our waste collection 
crew, wheeled bins will be tagged to inform the household why the bin 
has been rejected. 

 

Residents who do not observe this Policy may also be liable to action 
under the Council’s Waste and Recycling Enforcement Policy (see 
section 23) 

 

6. Presentation of Waste and Recycling Containers on Collection 
Day 

 

6a All waste containers are to be presented correctly at the kerbside or 
at an agreed designated collection point by 7am on the scheduled 
collection day to guarantee they will be collected. Containers must be 
presented with wheels and/or handles (if applicable) facing outwards. 
 
Collection times will vary as the service make round changes on a 
regular basis to optimise completion times. Containers not presented at 
the time the collection vehicle passes will not be emptied and the council 
will not return for them. Residents missing their collections will have to 
dispose of the waste themselves at a local Household Waste Recycling 
Centre or wait until their next scheduled collection.  
 
Residents taking waste to a household recycling centre must ensure all 
waste is pre- sorted. No recycling or food waste is permitted in residual 
waste (See section 26 for the Use of Household Recycling Centres). 

 
6b. Residents are responsible for ensuring that bins awaiting collection 
are not causing an obstruction to pedestrians or motorists. 

 

6c. The Council must return the bin to any designated collection point 
after collection. Waste containers must be returned by waste collection 

Tudalen 28



crews in a manner that does not obstructed the footways, or driveways. 
 

6d. Residents are responsible for ensuring that all waste containers are 
presented with the lids (where applicable) closed.  

 

 No residual side waste is accepted. 

 Recycling side waste is accepted (Section 1b)  

 

All waste & recycling must be contained within the containers provided. 
 
6e. Waste collection crews are responsible for clearing up any spillages 
caused during the collection process where is it safe to do so.  

 
6g. Residents presenting containers on the public highway (including 
pavements) should take their containers back onto their property as 
soon as is reasonably practicable and in any case by 7am on the next 
day after collection.  
 
Containers left out after this time are not permitted to be on the public 
highway and will be subject to enforcement procedures under Section 
46 of the environmental Protection Act, 1990. 

 
6h. It is the resident/landlord/managing agent of the property 
responsibility to ensure they have adequate storage to store their 
waste and recycling containers before and post scheduled collections. 
To maintain containment of the materials within them on their property 
and to protect them from misuse and damage. 
 

6i. Households who are not able to present their own waste container 
due to infirmity or disability may be entitled to register on the Council’s 
Assisted Collection Service (See Policy 16). Successful applicants will 
agree an accessible collection point from inside the curtilage of the 
resident’s property. 

 
7. Collection from Private and un-adopted roads 

 

The decision (whether or not to travel on un-adopted roads) to access 
domestic properties for the purpose of the completion of waste & 
recycling collections, will be the responsibility of waste and recycling 
service managers, based upon the following criteria: 

 

 Risk assessment by Operational Team Leaders or Service 
Managers, particularly in relation to the following hazards: 
 Health and safety risks (reversing in restricted spaces 

etc.); 
Tudalen 29



 Risk of causing damage to DCC vehicle due to the 
condition of a road or access restrictions. 

 risk of causing damage to non-DCC assets including the 
structure of the road / manhole covers / parked vehicles 
/street furniture/ overhanging vegetation/ bridge weight 
and height restrictions; 

 Operational considerations, including ease or otherwise 
of utilising the un-adopted road including the amount of 
reversing required, availability of required turning circle 
and round efficiencies (i.e. the availability of a suitable 
sized waste collection vehicle in that location on the 
given collect day). 

 

In all cases where access is restricted, the householder will be formally 
notified where their waste is to be placed for collection (point of 
presentation) 

 

8. Overweight bins 
 
If any bin is too heavy to be moved safely by the collection operative or 
lifted by the collection vehicle, the bin will be left at the point of 
presentation. 
 
Collection operatives will place a sticker or tag on the container with an 
indication as to why the container was not emptied. It is likely that heavy 
bins contain prohibited items (see Policy 5) and the householder may be 
subject to the Council’s enforcement procedures. 

When a container is found to be too heavy or damaged and cannot be 
moved safely, the householder will be required to reduce the weight of 
the container, before   presenting it on the next scheduled collection day.  

Any prohibited items will also have to be removed. DCC will not return 
to empty the container before the next scheduled collection day. 

 

9. Damaged bins 
 

9a. If your container is damaged, it may not be emptied. Containers with 
missing wheels, broken handles or severe cracks on the main body will 
not be emptied if the waste collect crew deem it is unsafe to manoeuvre 
or empty. If DCC are unable to empty your container because it is 
damaged, we will tag or sticker the bins to explain why.     Your bins are 
the property of DCC but you are responsible for maintaining them. You 
must therefore arrange for your bin to be repaired or replaced if 
damaged. 

 
9b. If a container is damaged by the Operational Crews during the 
emptying process, the crews will report the damage and automatically 

Tudalen 30



order a free replacement container which will be delivered to the 
property within 10 working days. If the Operational Crew are able to 
identify which property the container comes from, they will post an 
information slip through the door. Occasionally, DCC are unable to 
supply waste containers within 10 working days due to national 
shortages. In such cases, disposable sacks will be provided until a 
container can be sourced and delivered. 

 

10. Bin/sack contamination 
 

Residents are required to present the correct type of waste in each 
individual waste container. If incorrect waste is presented in any 
container, DCC reserves the right not to empty/collect the container and 
will sticker/tag the container.  

 
Biodegradable or Compostable packaging of any type must not be 
placed in any recycling containers, including the garden waste bin. The 
only exception is the use of compostable liners supplied by the Council 
for the food waste service. A list of what can be placed in each type of 
container and what is prohibited is found in Sections 1, 4 and 5. 
 

The contents of the recycling container(s), food waste caddy and green 
garden waste containers will be inspected before emptying. If any other 
material, other than that specified for container type, is present in any 
of the containers, these will not be emptied and a sticker or tag will be 
placed on the bin advising the reasons why. DCC will not return to 
collect the container prior to the next scheduled collection and 
residents must remove the incorrect waste from the container.  

 
The black wheeled bin (or pink disposable sack) may also be inspected. 
If recyclable items are found in the bin, DCC has the right to decline 
collection of the container. Households failing to sort their rubbish into 
the correct containers on at least 3 occasions will be subject to a £100 
fixed penalty notice. (See Household Waste Enforcement Policy 
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-
policies/policies/environmental-health/environmental-health.aspx ) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 31

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/policies/environmental-health/environmental-health.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/policies/environmental-health/environmental-health.aspx


 

11. Presentation of excess waste  

11a. Closed lids 
 
All containers must be presented with closed lids. If a container is 
presented with the lid raised, it may not be safe to empty. If a container 
is presented overfilled with the lid open, it will not be emptied and the 
collection crew will leave a tag or sticker on the container advising of 
the reason. 

 

The resident must either take the waste to a Household Waste 
Recycling Centre, arrange for a private collection from a registered 
waste carrier or wait until the next scheduled collection, when the 
container must be presented with excess waste removed and the lid 
closed. 

 
11b. Side/excess waste (All containers except recycling)  
 
Excess and side waste presented outside a bin will not be taken by the 
collection crews at any time. If excess waste is presented the Council 
may take formal enforcement action. 

 
11c. Side/excess waste (recycling)  
 
Residents may place out extra dry recycling waste for collection by the 
side of their blue bin. The items must be presented loose in a cardboard 
box (which will not be returned) or a re-usable bag or kerbside style box 

(Which will be returned). Glass bottles and jars must only be presented 
in the blue bin for safety reasons. 

 

Residents should only present extra waste on the day of collection (not 
the night before) to try to keep the waste dry and prevent it from 
escaping in windy weather. Residents are advised NOT to put out extra 
waste during extreme weather conditions and must take responsibility 
for clearing up wind-blown litter that has escaped from their waste. 
 
12. Missed collections. 

 
Where containers have been presented on time and in the agreed 
location and not been emptied DCC will return to empty the container as 
soon as possible (2 working days from receipt of missed collection 
report) 
 
All missed collections must be reported within 2 working days of 
scheduled collection via  

Tudalen 32



 

Most waste collection vehicles are fitted with CCTV cameras and in-cab 
technology, which provides DCC with real time information of the 
service. This real time information may be used to investigate any 
reported collection issues. 

 
There could be a reason why your bin was not collected. If DCC rejected 
your bin the operational crew will place a tag or sticker on your bin to 
explain why, as well as report the issue at the time through the vehicle 
telematics systems. 

 
The operational crew use on on-board telematics system to record all 
households where bins were not presented at the time of the collection. 

 
We will not return for rejected bins or bins not placed out on time by a 
household. 

 

If you presented your container, it wasn’t contaminated but we didn’t 
collect it, you can report the missed collection via the Council’s 
website www.denbighshire.gov.uk/ or the Council’s contact centre 
(01824 706000). 
 

13. Charges for the supply and delivery of new or replacement bins  

 

There is a charge for the supply and delivery of new or replacement 
bins, including the initial provision to householders or developers of new 
properties. The charge for a new bin will be reviewed annually and 
published as part of DCC’s Fees and Charges register.  
See Section 25. 
 
These service charges apply if residents request a new container or a 
replacement container due to the bin being lost, stolen or damaged. If a 
resident request to remove and replace a contaminated container, 
charges will also apply. 

 
13a. For tenanted properties, it is a landlord’s responsibility to supply 
waste containers for recycling and residual waste for tenants upon the 
signing of a new tenancy agreement, for which the same charges apply. 
VAT is payable. However, it is the tenant’s responsibility to ensure that 
landlords agree to this provision before they enter into an agreement, as 
DCC can only enforce this provision with licenced landlords. 

 
13b. Payment must be made when a container is ordered and container 
will not be delivered until receipt of the full payment. This payment is 
non-refundable.   Containers will be delivered within 10 working days of 
receipt of payment. 

Tudalen 33

http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/


13c. All containers (Bins & Caddies) remain the property of DCC. Any 
payments are for the service and delivery. You are responsible for 
keeping the container in good condition. The container must remain at 
the  property, despite any changes to ownership or tenancy. If any 
additional containers are authorised, these can be transferred to another 
property in the DCC area, and it is the responsibility of the resident to 
notify us of the new address 4 weeks before the move. 

 

No refunds are given should a household wish us to collect an unwanted 
container, but the collection will be provided free of charge. If a 
household has paid for a container that they are not entitled to and 
present the container with waste at the kerbside (for example they 
present two black bins but are only permitted to have one emptied), 
DCC reserve the right to recover the container and no refund will be 
given. 

 

For more information, https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-
recycling/waste-and-recycling-charges.aspx 
 

14. Wheelie bin identification 

 
14a. Residents should ensure their bins are clearly marked with their 
house/flat number. This will help recover their bin should it go missing 
and enable the crews to return bins to the correct collection point once 
emptied. It also helps crews to report the correct address, should a bin 
be damaged during the emptying process. Bin numbering reduces theft, 
or bins being taken in error by another household.  

 
14b. DCC supply microchipped black bins to all households when new 
containers are requested.  Residents must not attempt to remove or 
interfere with the microchip. The cost of repair or replacement of bins 
due to any damaged caused to the bin or microchip will fall to the person 
liable for the council tax payments of the property to which the bin is 
registered, at the time the damage was reported. 

 

The microchip holds no personal data about the occupiers of the 
property. It simply assigns a bin to an address. The microchip will be read 
every time the bin is emptied and helps the DCC record any exceptional 
events with the collection process (e.g. Bin in Wagon, Contamination, 
Side Waste Presented, bin damaged during emptying process, bin too 
heavy). This will assist DCC to target our educational and enforcement 
resources to optimise recycling behaviours  and also improve the services 
we offer. 

 
 

15. Assisted Collections Service 
Tudalen 34

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-and-recycling-charges.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-and-recycling-charges.aspx


 

15a. Eligibility criteria 
 
The Council provides an Assisted Collections Service on request to 
residents due to age and infirmity, mobility or certain medical conditions, 
providing there is no-one else living at the property who is capable of 
presenting the bins. The service can also be requested for a temporary 
short-term application (due to recovery from surgery or broken bone, for 
example). 

 

15b. Application Process 
 
Requests must be made via the Council’s website 
www.denbighshire.gov.uk/ or the Council’s contact centre (01824 
706000) and each application will be considered on its individual merits. 
During the assessment process, the Council reserves the right to verify 
the information provided by contacting applicants either by telephone, a 
visit, requesting medical documentation from a GP or other medical 
practitioner (at no cost to the Council), or utilising records such as the 
Electoral Register Council Tax information and information on any 
Benefits. 

 
An application will be assessed, and applicants informed of the 
outcome within 15 working days of receipt of a fully completed 
application. Until formal notification of approval is provided, the resident 
is responsible for presenting the bin(s). 

 

15c. The collection 
 
Where an assisted collection is provided, the collection crew will collect 
bins from the normal storage point and return them to the same point 
once emptied. Residents must ensure that bins are accessible on the 
property and any gates are unlocked on collection day. Dogs/animals 
must be kept away from the storage area during the collection, or the 
collection may not be able to take place. DCC will not return for a 
collection if the collection crew report that there is no access to the 
property or containers. Operational crews must close all gates used to 
access the property after returning the empty container(s) to the agreed 
storage location. 

 
15d. Renewal of applications 
 
Approved applications will automatically expire after 2 years. Applicants 
will receive a reminder notice 12 weeks before the expiry date and will 
be instructed to reapply for the service if it is still needed. If a renewal 
has not been completed by the expiry date, the residents address will be 
removed from the assisted collection database and assisted collections 

Tudalen 35

http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/


will stop. 
 
15e. Cancellation of the service 
 
Applicants must inform the council if they move home and no longer 
require the service at the address on the application. We also ask that 
families of loved ones that have passed away or have moved into 
supported living, contact the Council to let us know the service is no 
longer needed, at their earliest convenience. 

 
 

16. NEW Requests for additional residual waste capacity 
 

Where residents require additional residual waste capacity, requests 
must be made via the Council’s website www.denbighshire.gov.uk/ or 
the Council’s contact centre (01824 706000) Each application will be 
assessed based on the requirement of the household and household size 
and circumstances. DCC reserves the right to verify the information 
provided at any time by contacting applicants either by telephone, a visit 
or utilising records such as the Electoral Register. 
 
Applicants will be advised in writing within 15 working days of the 
outcome of their request. If the householder is entitled to increased 
capacity, they will be required to pay for the supply of the additional 
containers. The council will maintain a database to confirm approval of 
the additional container at the applicant’s property. 
 
DCC retains the right to audit the waste presented by any households 
authorised for additional residual waste capacity. Any such assessment 
will be triggered should the operational crews report that household is not 
recycling, or not recycling properly so that we can take steps to ensure 
that an applicant is fully utilising the DCC’s recycling services. Should it 
be determined that this is not the case, the household will be subject to 
the DCC household enforcement policy. See section 23 of this policy. 
 
Further instances (within a 12-month period) will result in the 
authorisation for additional residual waste capacity being withdrawn. 
 
Unauthorised additional bins will not be emptied and will be removed if re-
presented. 

 

Authorised additional bins will be reviewed regularly, to ensure 
householders still qualify for the service. When a review of the 
householder’s status is undertaken, if the household no longer meets the 
DCC’s criteria, or if the completed review questionnaire is not received 
by DCC, residents will be informed that they are no longer eligible for 
additional capacity collections and the additional bin will not be emptied. 

Tudalen 36

http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/


At the request of the resident, the extra black bin  will be removed at that 
time, free of charge. 

 

The approval of an additional capacity bin is at the discretion of 
Denbighshire County Council’s operating in accordance with this 
policy. 

 
17. Non-Infectious Hygiene Waste  

 
A household generating a significant quantity of non-infectious clinical 
waste, due to medical conditions of an individual who is permanently 
resident there will be entitled to apply for additional waste capacity. 
Applications are considered for families with children in disposable 
nappies, or from households where regular disposal of Absorbent 
Hygiene Products is required. 

 
Non-infectious clinical waste is classified as low grade clinical waste 
such as: 
 

 Dressings/swabs and bandages 

 Disposable bedding 

 Used disposable bed pans and liners 

 Incontinence pads 

 Disposable nappies 

 Wipes and gloves 

 Stoma bags 

 Empty urine containers where there is no risk of blood 

contamination 
 

Requests can be made via the Council’s website 
www.denbighshire.gov.uk/ or the Council’s contact centre (01824 
706000). 

 
Each application will be individually assessed, and the Council reserves 
the right to verify the information provided by contacting applicants either 
by telephone, a visit or utilising records such as the Electoral Register. 
This assessment may include an on-site waste audit, to assess that an 
applicant is fully utilising the Council’s recycling services. Applicants will 
be advised in writing within 15 working days of the outcome of their 
request. 

 
If an application is approved and the householder is entitled to increased 
capacity, the householder may proceed to order a back bin, for which 
charges apply. Unauthorised bins will not be emptied.  The council has 
a right to recover unauthorised containers supporting the Council logo if 
presented without authorisation on the public highway. 

Tudalen 37

http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/


 
All hygiene waste must be bagged securely to prevent the escape of 
fluids and smells. Authorised additional bins will be reviewed regularly, 
to ensure householders still qualify for the service. If, when a review of 
the householder’s status is undertaken, a household no longer meets 
the Council’s criteria, or if the completed review questionnaire is not 
received by the Council, the householder will be advised in 
writing and the additional bin will no longer be emptied. 

 

At the request of the resident, the additional bin will be removed at that 
time, free of charge. 
 

 

18. Disposal of medical waste arising from GP issue or treatment in 
the home 

 

18a. Needles/ Injection equipment (sharps) 
 
If you use injecting equipment your GP should prescribe you with the 
appropriate container e.g. a sharps box and local chemists provide 
disposal facilities for these. Needles or used sharps containers must not 
be put in any of your containers for disposal. Any container identified as 
contaminated by this type of waste will not be collected. 
 
18b. Infectious waste 

 
All waste arising from treatment issued by a nurse or doctor at home 
should be taken away by the practitioner. Infectious waste must be 
taken away by the practitioner and not be placed in any DCC container. 

 

19. Abandoned bins 
 

When DCC deems a bin to be abandoned, arrangements will be made 
for these to be removed within 15 working days. Abandoned containers 
will either be re-used or recycled, depending upon their condition. 

 

To report a suspected abandoned bin, please visit the Council website 
www.denbighshire.gov.uk/ or the Council’s contact centre (01824 
706000). 

 
 

20. Collection of unwanted bins 
 
DCC will collect unwanted bins free of charge upon the delivery of any 
replacement containers.  

DCC council waste containers cannot be taken to any household 
Tudalen 38

http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/


recycling park. When a new replacement waste container is supplied, 

the council will remove the old, damaged one at the time of delivery. 

 
21. Collection of white goods, bulky items and furniture 
The Council offers a chargeable service for the collection of bulky items 
for larger household items that should not be placed in household waste 
containers. The cost of this service is reviewed annually and published 
as part of the Council’s Fees and Charges register.  
 
Please refer to the Council’s website 
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/bulky-item-
collection.aspx to find out what items the Council accept on the Bulky 
Waste Service.  
 
Items will be collected within 15 working days from the time of booking. 
Payments must be processed and paid in full before the visit is 
scheduled. DCC will retain the administration fee in the event of 
cancellations but refund the per item charge. 
 

 
22. Encouraging compliance to the Household Waste and 

Recycling Service  

 

See Household Waste and Recycling Policy 

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-

plans-and-policies/policies/environmental-health/environmental-

health.aspx  

23. Presentation of waste 

Section 46 of the Environmental Protection Act, 1990 gives the council 

powers to prescribe: 

 What containers (size, colour and specification) must be used for 

specific waste types 

 Where and when the waste container should be presented for 

collection 

 When waste containers should not be present on the public 

highway. 

 What type of waste to present in each container. 

The legislation also provides the council with the legal right to refuse to 

collect waste that has not been presented correctly, such as excess 

waste, prohibited waste and waste put in the wrong bin. 
 

The Council recognises that sometimes people make mistakes and that 

Tudalen 39

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/bulky-item-collection.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/bulky-item-collection.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/policies/environmental-health/environmental-health.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/policies/environmental-health/environmental-health.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/policies/environmental-health/environmental-health.aspx


some people may have genuine difficulties in complying with all the 

council’s requirements.  

Therefore, we operate a 3 step education/enforcement procedure, 

should we identify a household that has not complied to the Waste and 

Recycling Collection Policies relating  to the kerbside collection of 

household waste.  

 first stage will be Education from our officers, issuing households 

with an advice leaflet and an advice letter from the officer.  

 second stage will be the issuing of a Section 46 Notice under the 

Environmental Protection Act 1990.  

 final stage of the procedure results in a £100 fixed penalty notice 

being issued to a named householder.  

 

Where we encounter vulnerable households, who appear to lack 
understanding or physical capability to adhere to all our policies, we will 
not evoke the fixed penalty final stage. Instead officers will work with the 
residents and known carers (and landlords where applicable) to  help 
people manage their waste as best they can. Exemptions from recycling 
some or all aspects of waste can be put in place where evidenced by a 
council waste officer and/or carer/medical practitioner. 
 
 

24. Householder Duty of Care 

Occasionally the Council identifies individuals that have fly tipped waste, 

or given their waste to someone else who had subsequently fly tipped 

their waste. People who dump their waste face a £250 fixed penalty 

charge, or even prosecution irrelevant of the amount of waste dumped. 

Enforcement procedures are dealt with under Section 33 of the 

Environmental Protection Act. Dumped waste will be treated as a fly 

tipping offence. 

 

Residents must ensure they always dispose of their waste responsibly. 

The Householder Duty of Care (section 34 of the Environmental 

Protection Act 1990), puts a legal requirement on the householder to 

make sure that anyone taking waste away on their behalf also disposes 

of the waste responsibly. If this is a paid for service, the householder 

must carry out a range of checks to make sure the company collecting 

you waste is a registered waste carrier and has deposited your waste at 

a licensed waste site. 

 
 Tudalen 40



25.  Waste Container Charges 

Charges apply for some of Denbighshire Council’s waste containers. 

Disposable sacks, food waste cadies and compostable liners remain 

free of charge. Please see for further details.  

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-and-

recycling-charges.aspx#Informationaboutthecharges 
 

26. Use of Household Waste Recycling Centres 

26a. Denbighshire Council has three static household Recycling 

Centres, where a range of unwanted household items can be taken.  

Denbighshire residents are also able to access household waste parks 

in Conwy County. Charges will apply for DIY and construction waste and 

some other non-household items.  

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-

parks/recycling-and-waste-disposal.aspx details the requirements for 

accessing and using the recycling parks. 

 
 
26b. Pop-Up Recycling Parks 

A year-round Pop-Up Recycling Park Service is offered in Corwen (1st 

and 3rd Saturday mornings and Llangollen (2nd and 3rd Saturday 

mornings) for residents of the Dee Valley MAG area. Visit 

www.denbighshire.gov.uk/ to find out locations, times and what waste 

can be accepted. 

26c. Booking system 

Anyone accessing a recycling park must book a slot through the 

Council’s Website, or by telephoning the contact centre. Proof of 

booking and residency will be required. 

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/visiting-

our-waste-and-recycling-parks.aspx 

Restrictions apply to the size and type of vehicle that can be used to 

bring waste to the recycling parks. Permits may be requested by 

householders wishing to use a commercial vehicle to transport their own 

household waste. Further details are provided here: 

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-

parks/recycling-and-waste-disposal.aspx 
 
  

Tudalen 41

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-and-recycling-charges.aspx#Informationaboutthecharges
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-and-recycling-charges.aspx#Informationaboutthecharges
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-parks/recycling-and-waste-disposal.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-parks/recycling-and-waste-disposal.aspx
http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/visiting-our-waste-and-recycling-parks.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/visiting-our-waste-and-recycling-parks.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-parks/recycling-and-waste-disposal.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-parks/recycling-and-waste-disposal.aspx


 

Part 2 proposed waste collection policy 

applicable with effect from introduction of 

new model waste & recycling service 2024. 
 
 

1. Domestic waste and recycling collection service for individual 
Properties (standard service) 

 

Denbighshire County Council (DCC) operate a 4-weekly collection 
cycle for household non-recyclable (residual) waste and weekly 
collection for recyclable materials. 
 
DCC expects residents to use the containers provided, unless DCC 
has granted an exception. By exception some households will be 
provided with a sack collection service (See section 3a). 

 

All households will receive a food waste collection service. Orange or 
orange/black kerbside food waste caddies, silver kitchen caddies and a 
supply of compostable liners are provided free of charge. Households 
are expected to present food waste for recycling, as food waste should 
not enter the residual waste stream.  
 
1a. Domestic Residual (Non-Recyclable) Waste  
 
The standard service for residual waste One 240 litres wheeled bin per 
household (or equivalent sacks). Provision will be made for households 
that require additional residual waste capacity, who are assessed and 
meet DCCs criteria.  

 

Residual waste is classified as household waste that cannot be recycled 
or composted through the standard Council kerbside services. Dry 
recyclable materials, food waste or garden waste are not accepted in the 
black wheeled bin.  

 
If the bin goes missing or becomes damaged beyond repair, it will be 
replaced by a 240-litre bin subject to receipt of payment or free of 
charge should the bin fail. 

 
Charges apply for the delivery of all domestic residual wheeled bins 
(new, replacement or additional where applicable) and those charges will 
be updated annually and published on the council website. Please note, 
payment is for the service of delivering containers/bins, they all remain 
the property of Denbighshire County Council. See section 14 

 
Tudalen 42



https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-and-
recycling-charges.aspx 
 
 
 
1b. Domestic Recyclable Waste  
 
Household recycling is separated into 3 black boxes delivered with a 
wheeled trolley and 1 reusable sack.  
 
The top box, with a blue lid and iconography displaying paper image 
and wording. This box is used to collect clean paper, including; cereal 
boxes, toilet/kitchen roll tubes, greetings cards, newspapers and 
magazines, envelopes, catalogues and directories.  
 
The middle box, with a red flap and iconography displaying cans and 
mixed plastic images and wording. This box is used to collect plastic 
bottles, (including plastic lids or trigger spray), plastic containers, 
(bottles, pots, tubs and trays), tins and cans (both steel and 
aluminium), tin foil (clean), and metal lids (from bottles or jars). 
 
The bottom box, with a green flap and iconography displaying glass 
image and writing. This is used to collect glass bottles and jars (no tops 
or lids).  
 
A blue reusable sack is provided to collect cardboard. Please note that 
cardboard must be broken up and placed in the sacks to be collected.  
 
If you produce additional recycling waste see section 12. 
 

2. Individual Properties Unsuitable for 2 or 4 wheeled bins  
 
This service is available where the curtilage of a property is inaccessible 
to our standard waste collection vehicles that empty wheeled bins (for 
example, steep drive, steps, no storage, narrow lanes, unadopted roads 
or   difficult location to access). Residents are provided with pink 
disposable sacks for presenting residual waste.  
 
Where possible residents may be able to receive a standard recycling 
collection but require a sack collection for residual waste.  
 
Where properties are not able to store a set of trolley boxes, an 
alternative solution will be offered. Recycling must be collected in 
separate steams (paper, cardboard, cans and plastic and glass). A 
series of coloured sacks will be provided to properties with recycling 
being collected weekly. A decision as to whether a property warrants a 

Tudalen 43

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-and-recycling-charges.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-and-recycling-charges.aspx


sack collection will be made following an assessment by a Council 
Officer. 
 

 A light blue sack with iconography (image of cardboard and 
wording) will be used to collect cardboard. 

 A dark blue sack with iconography (image of paper and wording) 
will be used to collect paper. 

 A red sack with iconography (image of cans and plastics and 
wording) will be used to collect mixed cans and plastics. 

 A green sack with iconography (image of glass and wording) will 
be used to collect glass.  

 
Households will be considered unsuitable for 2 or 4 wheeled bins in the 
following circumstances: 

 
a) Access to the location is not possible with a Refuse Collection 

Vehicle supporting bin lifts or Kerbside Collection Vehicle for 
recycling.  

b) The property has no storage for containers (garages and other 
outbuildings would constitute as suitable storage, as well as an 
outside space within the curtilage of the property/ land that would 
not block a fire exit or safe passage in and out of the main 
dwelling). 

c) It is unsafe to expect the occupants or the waste collection crews 
to manoeuvre containers to suitable a collection point, usually 
because of steps or long distances between the curtilage of the 
property and agreed collection point. 

d) The household consists of only elderly or infirm occupants who 
request to have a sack system in order to avoid requesting the 
Assisted Collection Service, as they are able to manage the sacks 
independently. 

e) Regular contamination of containers by a household results in 
the temporary or permanent removal of containers and the 
household is issued with transparent recycling sacks labelled 
with the address so that contamination can be carefully 
monitored. 

f) Other exceptional circumstances agreed by the Council. 
 
There are no restrictions on the amount of recycling sacks/bags that 
can be presented by households but all waste is expected to be 
separated as detailed above. 
 
Residual waste will be restricted to the equivalent of 60 litres per week 
(1 bin bags) or 240 litres per 4 weeks (4 bin bags). If eligible, provision 
will be made for households that require additional residual waste 
capacity, who are assessed and meet DCCs criteria. They will be able 
to present more residual waste at the agreed collection point.(see 

Tudalen 44



Section 17 and 18). 
 

 

Households using a sack service wishing to subscribe to the chargeable 
garden waste service may be offered 3 x re-useable sacks (depending 
on locations) (See Section 4b) However, if the location is inaccessible to 
all garden waste collection vehicles the household will not be eligible for 
this service. 

 
 

3 Properties most suited to communal “bulk” bins (360l 2 wheeled 
bins or 660l, 1100l 1280l four wheeled bins)  

 

DCC’s preferred method of storage and containment is 2-wheeled 
bins/recycling containers allocated to individual tenancies. However, 
where operational requirements or localised infrastructure dictates, DCC 
may determine that certain flats or houses of multiple occupation utilise 
bulk containers for the storage and collection of their waste and 
recycling. 
 
Residents will present their residual waste in Black 4 wheeled bins as 
directed by DCC.  
 
Recycling will be collected in separate streams, and therefore properties 
most suited to communal collections will be supplied with multiple 
containers for segregated recycling streams. These include;  
 

 A black bin with a dark blue lid and iconography displaying paper 
image and wording. This bin will be used to collect clean paper, 
including; cereal boxes, toilet/kitchen roll tubes, greetings cards, 
newspapers and magazines, envelopes, catalogues and 
directories.  

 

 A black bin with a red lid and iconography displaying cans and 
mixed plastic images and wording. This bin will be used to collect 
plastic bottles, (including plastic lids or trigger spray), plastic 
containers, (bottles, pots, tubs and trays), tins and cans (both 
steel and aluminium), tin foil (clean), and metal lids (from bottles 
or jars). 

 

 A black bin with a green lid and iconography displaying glass 
image and writing. This bin will be used to collect glass bottles 
and jars (no tops or lids).  

 

 A blue bin will be provided to collect cardboard. Please note that 
cardboard must be broken up and placed in to the correct 

Tudalen 45



container 
 
Areas DCC will consider using communal bulk bins: 

 A single property that is one of multi-occupation (HMO) where 
there are more than 5 tenants sharing one address, and space 
restrictions on site mean that 360l two wheeled bins or bulk 
containers (660l or bigger)  are more suitable, and take up less 
space than attempting to supply individual bins to each 
independent tenancy. Where storage restrictions    apply, or cross 
contamination of waste becomes an issue, these properties may 
be added to a sack collection system (see Section 2). 

 

 The property is part of a private development and the land owner/ 
landlord (and/or property management agent) has allocated a 
communal bin storage area at the location for shared use by all 
residents. 

 

Areas where multiple housing have no storage for individual bins for 
each property. 

 

An assessment to determine container requirements will be made by a 
Council Officer, following which the managing agent or landlord will be 
advised of the quantity, type and size of containers, (together with where 
the containers are to be located for collection). Only waste presented 
within the containers will be removed. Additional waste placed outside of 
the container or any other household items placed around or near to the 
containers will not be taken by the Council. It is the responsibility of the 
landlord or property management company to remove this waste. The 
waste collection crew must have unobstructed access to the waste 
containers. 

 
In all scenarios the shared container(s) must be stored within the 
curtilage of the property. If access to the bin store area is not provided, 
then the landlord (and/or property management agent) is responsible for 
ensuring the container is presented at a designated collection point and 
returned as soon as possible after it is emptied. 
 

DCC must be provided with keys or key code access to any  locked 
storage areas. 
 

In instances where the waste collection vehicle or collection crew cannot 
access the property, the agreed location of the containers will be such 
that DCCs waste collection service will be able to manoeuvre the 
containers to the collection vehicle via a minimal unobstructed distance 
(20M, or less if the ground is uneven [e.g. gravelled, cobbled]) and 
across surfaces that do not prevent the free wheeled movement of the 

Tudalen 46



container. The container must not be required to be pulled to the 
collection vehicle via an inclined gradient that causes the load bearing 
weight to exceed that suitable for the handling of a single operative, nor 
will the container be stored upon steps or behind a kerb. Where the 
container is to be stored in a locked secure area, access to the secure 
area must be available at the time the collection occurs. 
 
It is the responsibility of the landlord or property management company 
to ensure that all reasonable steps are taken to prevent unauthorised 
use of the containers store by households external to that property. 
 
 

In the event that these conditions are not satisfied and a collection of 
waste is missed, DCC is not required to return until the next scheduled 
collection day and it will be the responsibility of the managing agent/ 
landlord to make alternative arrangements to dispose of the waste in 
advance of the next scheduled collection, ensuring compliance with 
waste legislation. 
 

From 1st September 2024, charges for delivery of any containers will 
apply for initial delivery, as well as bins that are lost, and repair charges 
will be payable if the bins become damaged due to vandalism (See 
Policy 25/ Appendix 2). 
 
On occasion, DCC may provide an on street waste collection “station” for 
use restricted to specific households. DCC will be responsible for the 
provision and maintenance of these stations and the landlord’s/ property 
management agent (where applicable) is be responsible for ensuring 
new tenants are provided with details on how to  access these stations. 
 

4 Organic Waste  
 
4a. Food Waste 
 
DCC provides a weekly food waste collection service for all 
households. It is a legal requirement in Wales to recycle food 
waste. 

 

Food waste includes ALL cooked and raw foods, including bones but 
excluding used cooking oil. Cut flowers are also permitted. 

 

Orange/black with orange lid 23 litre kerbside food waste caddies, 
silver kitchen caddies and an annual supply of compostable liners are 
supplied free of charge. 
 
Residents can request replacement compostable liners in the following 
ways: 

Tudalen 47



 Tie a food waste liner (or the re-order tag at the end of the roll) to 
the to the handle of the orange/black and orange kerbside caddy 
and the collection crew will leave a roll in or next to the caddy 
after the caddy has been emptied (Preferred and most efficient, 
environmentally friendly method). Please remember to remove 
the tag/liner once you have received your new roll. 

 Collect a roll of liners from your local library, one stop shop or 
public Council reception area. 

If the other methods cannot be used, caddy liner stocks can be 
replenished by requesting a roll online on the council website or 
telephoning the contact centre 

Food contamination of other waste streams; if identified, DCC will reject 
residual or recycling containers and sacks containing food. A tag or 
sticker will be placed on the rejected container. Householders must 
remove the food waste and place it into the food caddy before re-
presenting the containers correctly on the next scheduled collection day. 
Households identified as not recycling food will be subject to the DCC’s 
Household Waste and Recycling Enforcement procedures. 
  
 

4b. Garden Waste 
Garden waste is collected on a fortnightly basis through a chargeable 
subscription service. Garden waste bins are green and have a 140 
litre capacity.  
 
Residents can subscribe for additional bins to be emptied as part of 
the service. Garden waste is 
classed as: 

 Grass cuttings and leaves 

 Cut flowers 

 Trimmings 

 Hedge cuttings 

 Weeds 

 Small braches/twigs 

 Wind fallen fruit 
Further details are available on the Council’s website 
www.denbighshire.gov.uk/gardenwaste. 

 

The Council charges for the kerbside collection of garden waste. The 
service operates all year round (Up to 26 collections per year, weather 
permitting). 

 
“Difficult to access” Households (i.e. those on a sack collection for 
refuse) wishing to subscribe to the garden waste service may be offered 
3 or 6 x 50 litre re-useable green dumpy sacks (depending on locations). 
This service is also chargeable. 

Tudalen 48

http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/gardenwaste


 
5 Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment Recycling WEEE 
 
DCC provides a collection service for small electrical items, such as 
toasters and electric shavers. The item must not be larger than an A4 
sheet of paper and if the item contains removable batteries, these must be 
removed and placed in the battery collection containers. 
 
For larger items, these can be taken to a Household Waste and Recycling 
Centre, (see section 26). 
 
5a. Battery Collection 
 
DCC provides a collection service for used batteries. For properties on a 
standard recycling collection (with trolley boxes), a pink battery clip will be 
provided. These will be collected weekly with the recycling collection. For 
households on a sack collection, a white reusable battery pouch will be 
provided.  
 
Batteries must not be placed in the recycling containers or residual waste 
stream. 
 
6. Prohibited items – all waste containers 
 
The following items are prohibited from all containers: 

 

a. Hazardous waste (e.g. asbestos and plasterboard) 

b. Liquids (including paint and oil) 

c. Soil, rubble and stone 

d. Hot ashes 

e. Electrical items and batteries (these must be collected as per 

Section 5). 

f. Loose dust (e.g. plaster, cement dust or vacuum dust). 
 

These items can pose a threat to human health and safety or could 
cause damage to the waste collection vehicle and waste treatment 
infrastructure if not disposed of carefully. For example, batteries and hot 
ashes can cause fires either in the waste collection vehicle or waste 
transfer station. Soil and rubble can cause a wheeled bin to become 
overweight and cause manual handling injuries, or impact injuries if it 
falls off the bin lift during the emptying process. 
 
Failure to comply with this Policy will result in non-collection of waste, and 
residents will be responsible for making their own arrangements for  safe 
and appropriate disposal. Some prohibited items can be taken to any of 
Denbighshire’s Household Recycling Centres (See Policy 26 for the Use 

Tudalen 49



of Household Waste Recycling Centre Policy). 
 
Many retailers provide free household battery disposal points, including 
large supermarkets and electrical stores. Large retailers or electrical 
equipment have a duty to takeback all items where the length of the 
longest side is 25cm or more. 

 
In all cases, where prohibited items are identified by our waste collection 
crew, wheeled bins will be tagged to inform the household why the bin 
has been rejected. 

 

Residents who do not observe this Policy may also be liable to action 
under the Council’s Waste and Recycling Enforcement Policy  
 
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-
policies/policies/environmental-health/environmental-health.aspx 
 

 

7. Presentation of Waste and Recycling Containers on Collection Day 
 

7a. All waste containers are to be presented correctly at the kerbside or 
at an agreed designated collection point by 7am on the scheduled 
collection day to guarantee they will be collected. Containers must be 
presented with wheels and/or handles (if applicable) facing outwards. 
 
Collection times will vary as the service make round changes on a 
regular basis to optimise completion times. Containers not presented at 
the time the collection vehicle passes will not be emptied and the council 
will  not return for them.  
 
Residents missing their collections will have to dispose of the waste 
themselves at a local Household Waste Recycling Centre or wait until 
their next scheduled collection. Residents taking waste to a household 
recycling centre must ensure all waste is pre- sorted. No recycling or 
food waste is permitted in residual waste (See section 26 for the Use of 
Household Recycling Centres). 

 
7b. Residents are responsible for ensuring that bins awaiting collection 
are not causing an obstruction to pedestrians or motorists. 

 

7c. The Council must return the bin to any designated collection point 
after collection. Waste containers must be returned by waste collection 
crews in a manner that does not obstructed the footways, or driveways. 

 

7d. Residents are responsible for ensuring that all waste containers are 
presented with the lids (where applicable) closed.  

 

Tudalen 50

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/policies/environmental-health/environmental-health.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/policies/environmental-health/environmental-health.aspx


 No residual side waste is accepted. 

 Occasional recycling side waste will be collected, regular additional 
recycling may require additional containers (see Section 12c)  

 

All waste & recycling must be contained within the containers provided. 
 
7e. Waste collection crews are responsible for clearing up any spillages 
caused during the collection process where is it safe to do so.  
 
7f. Residents presenting containers on the public highway (including 
pavements) should take their containers back onto their property as 
soon as is reasonably practicable and in any case by 7am on the next 
day after collection.  
 

7g. Containers left out after this time are not permitted to be on the 
public highway and will be subject to enforcement procedures under 
Section 46 of the environmental Protection Act, 1990. 
 
7h. It is the resident/landlord/managing agent of the property 
responsibility to ensure they have adequate storage to store their waste 
and recycling containers before and post scheduled collections. To 
maintain containment of the materials within them on their property and 
to protect them from misuse and damage. 
 

7i. Households who are not able to present their own waste container 
due to infirmity or disability may be entitled to register on the Council’s 
Assisted Collection Service (See Policy 16). Successful applicants will 
agree an accessible collection point from inside the curtilage of the 
resident’s property. 

 
8. Collection from Private and un-adopted roads 

 

The decision (whether or not to travel on un-adopted roads) to access 
domestic properties for the purpose of the completion of waste & 
recycling collections, will be the responsibility of waste and recycling 
service managers, based upon the following criteria: 

 

a. Risk assessment by Operational Team Leaders or Service 
Managers, particularly in relation to the following hazards: 
i. Health and safety risks (reversing in restricted spaces 

etc.), 
ii. Risk of damage to DCC vehicles, 
iii. risk of causing damage to non-DCC assets including the 

structure of the road / manhole covers / parked vehicles 
/street furniture/ overhanging vegetation/ bridge weight 
and height restrictions, 

Tudalen 51



iv. Operational considerations, including ease or otherwise of 
utilising the un-adopted road including the amount of 
reversing required, availability of required turning circle 
and round efficiencies (i.e. the availability of a suitable 
sized waste collection vehicle in that location on the given 
collect day). 

 

In all cases where access is restricted, the householder will be formally 
notified where their waste is to be placed for collection (point of 
presentation) 

 

9. Overweight bins 
 
If any bin is too heavy to be moved safely by the collection operative or 
lifted by the collection vehicle, the bin will be left at the point of 
presentation. 
 
Collection operatives will place a sticker or tag on the container with an 
indication as to why the container was not emptied. It is likely that heavy 
bins contain prohibited items (see Section 6) and the householder may be 
subject to the Council’s enforcement procedures. 

When a container is found to be too heavy or damaged and cannot be 
moved safely, the householder will be required to reduce the weight of 
the container, before   presenting it on the next scheduled collection day.  

Any prohibited items will also have to be removed. DCC will not return 
to empty the container before the next scheduled collection day. 

 

10. Damaged bins 
 

10a. If your container is damaged, it may not be emptied. Containers 
with missing wheels, broken handles or severe cracks on the main body 
will not be emptied if the waste collect crew deem it is unsafe to 
manoeuvre or empty. If DCC are unable to empty your container 
because it is damaged, we will tag or sticker the bins to explain why.     
Your bins are the property of DCC but you are responsible for 
maintaining them. You must therefore arrange for your bin to be repaired 
or replaced if damaged. 

 
10b. If a container is damaged by the Operational Crews during the 
emptying process, the crews will report the damage and automatically 
order a free replacement container which will be delivered to the 
property within 10 working days. If the Operational Crew are able to 
identify which property the container comes from, they will post an 
information slip through the door. Occasionally, DCC are unable to 
supply waste containers within 10 working days due to national 
shortages. In such cases, disposable sacks will be provided until a 

Tudalen 52



container can be sourced and delivered. 
 
 

 

11. Bin/sack contamination 
 

Residents are required to present the correct type of waste in each 
individual waste container. If incorrect waste is presented in any 
container, DCC reserves the right not to empty/collect the container and 
will sticker/tag the container.  

 
Biodegradable or Compostable packaging of any type must not be 
placed in any recycling containers, including the garden waste bin. The 
only exception is the use of compostable liners supplied by the Council 
for the food waste service. For the A-Z of waste please see.  
 
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/a-to-z-recycling-
guide/a-to-z-recycling-guide.aspx 

The contents of the recycling container(s), food waste caddy and green 
garden waste containers will be inspected before emptying. If any other 
material, other than that specified for container type, is present in any 
of the containers, these will not be emptied and a sticker or tag will be 
placed on the bin advising the reasons why. DCC will not return to 
collect the container prior to the next scheduled collection and 
residents must remove the incorrect waste from the container.  

 
The black wheeled bin (or pink disposable sack) may also be inspected. 
If recyclable items are found in the bin, DCC has the right to decline 
collection of the container. Households failing to sort their rubbish into 
the correct containers on at least 3 occasions will be subject to a £100 
fixed penalty notice.  
 
See Household Waste Enforcement Policy  
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-
policies/policies/environmental-health/environmental-health.aspx 
 

12. Presentation of excess waste  

12a. Closed lids 
 
All containers must be presented with closed lids. If a container is 
presented with the lid raised, it may not be safe to empty. If a container 
is presented overfilled with the lid open, it will not be emptied and the 
collection crew will leave a tag or sticker on the container advising of 
the reason. 

Tudalen 53

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/a-to-z-recycling-guide/a-to-z-recycling-guide.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/a-to-z-recycling-guide/a-to-z-recycling-guide.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/policies/environmental-health/environmental-health.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/policies/environmental-health/environmental-health.aspx


 

The resident must either take the waste to a Household Waste 
Recycling Centre, arrange for a private collection from a registered 
waste carrier or wait until the next scheduled collection, when the 
container must be presented with excess waste removed and the lid 
closed. 

 
 
12b. Side/excess waste (All containers except recycling)  
 
Excess and side waste presented outside a bin will not be taken by the 
collection crews at any time. If excess waste is presented the Council 
may take formal enforcement action. 

 
12c. Side/excess waste (recycling)  
 

If a household occasionally produces extra recycling, the recycling can 
be presented loose in a cardboard box. The householder should still 
keep recycling separated to the best of their ability. With the exception of 
glass bottles and jars which must always presented in the correct 
container for safety of the operational crews.  

 
Residents who regularly produce excess recycling waste can request 
additional containers from DCC (charges may apply).  

 
13. Missed collections. 
 
Where containers have been presented by 7am in the agreed location 
and not been emptied DCC will return to empty the container. Please 
note DCC use tracking technology and CCTV video footage to verify if a 
container was presented or not. 
   
Residual Waste: Due to residual waste being collected 4-weekly, missed 
collections will be collected within two working days from receipt of 
report.  
 
Recycling: Due to recycling waste being collected weekly, DCC will not 
return to collect missed collections. However, when the missed 
collection has been reported (two working days from date of scheduled 
collection.) side waste will be authorised by the Team Leader/Service 
Manager. 
 
Garden Waste: Due to garden waste being collected fortnightly, when a 
missed collection is reported within two working days from date of 
scheduled collection. Missed collections will be collected within five 
working days from receipt of report. 

Tudalen 54



 

14.  Charges for the supply and delivery of new or replacement bins  

 

There is a charge for the supply and delivery of new or replacement 
bins, including the initial provision to householders or developers of new 
properties. The charge for a new bin will be reviewed annually and 
published as part of DCC’s Fees and Charges register.  

 
The charges apply if residents request a new container or a 
replacement container due to the bin being lost, stolen or damaged. If a 
resident request to remove and replace a contaminated container, 
charges will also apply. 

 
14a. For tenanted properties, it is a landlord’s responsibility to supply 
waste containers for recycling and residual waste for tenants upon the 
signing of a new tenancy agreement, for which the same charges apply. 
VAT is payable. However, it is the tenant’s responsibility to ensure that 
landlords agree to this provision before they enter into an agreement, as 
DCC can only enforce this provision with licenced landlords. 

 
14b. Payment must be made when a container is ordered and container 
will not be delivered until receipt of the full payment. This payment is 
non-refundable.   Under normal circumstances containers will be 
delivered within 10 working days of receipt of payment. 

14c. The container remains the property of DCC and must remain at the 
property, despite any changes to ownership or tenancy. If any additional 
containers are authorised, these can be transferred to another property 
in the DCC area, and it is the responsibility of the resident to notify us of 
the new address 4 weeks before the move. 

 

No refunds are given should a household wish us to collect an unwanted 
container, but the collection will be provided free of charge. If a 
household has paid for a container that they are not entitled to and 
present the container with waste at the kerbside (for example they 
present two black bins but are only permitted to have one emptied), 
DCC reserve the right to recover the container and no refund will be 
given. 

 

For more information, https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-
recycling/waste-and-recycling-charges.aspx 
 

15. Wheelie bin identification 

 
15a. Residents should ensure their bins are clearly marked with their 
house/flat number. This will help recover their bin should it go missing 

Tudalen 55

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-and-recycling-charges.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-and-recycling-charges.aspx


and enable the crews to return bins to the correct collection point once 
emptied. It also helps crews to report the correct address, should a bin 
be damaged during the emptying process. Bin numbering reduces theft, 
or bins being taken in error by another household.  

 
15b. All new DCC supplied black bins are microchipped.  Residents 
must not attempt to remove or interfere with the microchip. The cost of 
repair or replacement of bins due to any damaged caused to the bin or 
microchip will fall to the person liable for the council tax payments of the 
property to which the bin is registered, at the time the damage was 
reported. 

 

The microchip holds no personal data about the occupiers of the 
property. It simply assigns a bin to an address. The microchip will be 
read every time the bin is emptied and helps the DCC record any 
exceptional events with the collection process (e.g. Bin in Wagon, 

Contamination, Side Waste Presented, bin damaged during emptying 
process, bin too heavy). This will assist DCC to target our educational 
and enforcement resources to optimise recycling behaviours  and also 
improve the services we offer. 

 
 

16. Assisted Collections Service 
 

16a. Eligibility criteria 
 
The Council provides an Assisted Collections Service on request to 
residents due to age and infirmity, mobility or certain medical conditions, 
providing there is no-one else living at the property who is capable of 
presenting the bins. The service can also be requested for a temporary 
short-term application (due to recovery from surgery or broken bone, for 
example). 

 

16b. Application Process 
 
Requests must be made via the Council’s website 
www.denbighshire.gov.uk/ or the Council’s contact centre (01824 
706000) and each application will be considered on its individual merits. 
During the assessment process, the Council reserves the right to verify 
the information provided by contacting applicants either by telephone, a 
visit, requesting medical documentation from a GP or other medical 
practitioner (at no cost to the Council), or utilising records such as the 
Electoral Register Council Tax information and information on any 
Benefits. 

 
An application will be assessed, and applicants informed of the 
outcome within 15 working days of receipt of a fully completed 

Tudalen 56

http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/


application. Until formal notification of approval is provided, the resident 
is responsible for presenting the bin(s). 

 

16c. The collection 
 
Where an assisted collection is provided, the collection crew will collect 
bins from the normal storage point and return them to the same point 
once emptied. Residents must ensure that bins are accessible on the 
property and any gates are unlocked on collection day. Dogs/animals 
must be kept away from the storage area during the collection, or the 
collection may not be able to take place. DCC will not return for a 
collection if the collection crew report that there is no access to the 
property or containers. Operational crews must close all gates used to 
access the property after returning the empty container(s) to the agreed 
storage location. 

 
16d. Renewal of applications 
 
Approved applications will automatically expire after 2 years. Applicants 
will receive a reminder notice 12 weeks before the expiry date and will 
be instructed to reapply for the service if it is still needed. If a renewal 
has not been completed by the expiry date, the residents address will be 
removed from the assisted collection database and assisted collections 
will stop. 

 
16e. Cancellation of the service 
 
Applicants must inform the council if they move home and no longer 
require he service at the address on the application. We also ask that 
families of loved ones that have passed away or have moved into 
supported living, contact the Council to let us know the service is no 
longer needed, at their earliest convenience. 

 
 

17. NEW Requests for additional residual waste capacity 
 

Where residents require additional residual waste capacity, requests 
must be made via the Council’s website www.denbighshire.gov.uk/ or 
the Council’s contact centre (01824 706000) Each application will be 
assessed based on the requirement of the household and household size 
and circumstances.  
 
DCC reserves the right to verify the information provided at any time by 
contacting applicants either by telephone, a visit or utilising records such 
as the Electoral Register. 

 
DCC retains the right to audit the waste presented by any households 

Tudalen 57

http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/


authorised for additional residual waste capacity. Any such assessment 
will be triggered should the operational crews report that household is 
not recycling, or not recycling properly so that we can take steps to 
ensure that an applicant is fully utilising the DCC’s recycling services. 
Should it be determined that this is not the case, the household will 
receive one final written warning and provided with a recycling guide. 
 

18.  Non-Infectious Hygiene Waste 2024 onwards 
 

A household generating a significant quantity of non-infectious clinical 
waste, due to medical conditions of an individual who is permanently 
resident there will be entitled to apply for additional waste capacity. 
 
From 2023, Denbighshire County Council will offer a weekly 
Absorbent Hygiene Products (AHP) collections service. 
Applications are considered for families with children in disposable 
nappies or from households where regular disposal of AHP is 
required. 

 
AHP Waste is classified as: 

 Incontinence pads 

 Disposable nappies 

 Wipes and gloves 

 Stoma bags 

 

Residents will receive either a black 40 litre caddy (with purple lid), or a 

140 litre black bin (with purple lid). A DCC officer will assess the 

requirements of the application and offer the appropriate container. 

Caddy/bin liners will be provided free of charge by DCC. 

 

Residents will be required to reapply for the AHP service on an annual 

basis, and will receive a notification 12 weeks before the end date. In 

addition, any resident who does not present their AHP container for 3 

consecutive weeks, will have their service suspended until they contact 

DCC. If a resident is going on holiday for longer than 3 weeks, they should 

inform DCC. 

 

For other non-infections waste, additional residual waste capacity can be 

requested. (see section 17). This includes: 

 Dressings/swabs and bandages 

 Disposable bedding 

 Used disposable bed pans and liners 

 Empty urine containers where there is no risk of blood 
contamination 

 
Tudalen 58



Requests can be made via the Council’s website 
www.denbighshire.gov.uk/ or the Council’s contact centre (01824 
706000). 

 
Each AHP/Non-infections waste application will be individually assessed 
and DCC reserves the right to verify the information provided by 
contacting applicants either by telephone, a visit or utilising records such 
as the Electoral Register. 
Applicants will be advised in writing within 15 working days of the 
outcome of their request. 

 
At the request of the resident, containers will be removed, free of 
charge. 

 

 

19. Disposal of medical waste arising from GP issue or treatment in 
the home 

 

19a. Needles/ Injection equipment (sharps) 
 
If you use injecting equipment your GP should prescribe you with the 
appropriate container e.g. a sharps box and local chemists provide 
disposal facilities for these. Needles or used sharps containers must not 
be put in any of your containers for disposal. Any container identified as 
contaminated by this type of waste will not be collected. 

19b. Infectious waste 

 
All waste arising from treatment issued by a nurse or doctor at home 
should be taken away by the practitioner. Infectious waste must be 
taken away by the practitioner and not be placed in any DCC container. 

 

20. Abandoned bins 
 

When DCC deems a bin to be abandoned, arrangements will be made 
for these to be removed within 15 working days. Abandoned containers 
will either be re-used or recycled, depending upon their condition. 

 

To report a suspected abandoned bin, please visit the Council website 
www.denbighshire.gov.uk/ or the Council’s contact centre (01824 
706000). 

 
 

21. Collection of unwanted waste & recycling containers 
 
DCC will collect unwanted containers free of charge upon the delivery of 
any replacement containers.  Tudalen 59

http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/
http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/


DCC council waste containers cannot be taken to any household 

recycling park. When a new replacement waste container is supplied, 

the council will remove the old, damaged one at the time of delivery. It 

is the residents responsibility to ensure that the old container is 

accessible for pickup when expecting a new containers to be delivered. 

 

 
22. Collection of white goods, bulky items and furniture 
The Council offers a chargeable service for the collection of bulky items 
for larger household items that should not be placed in household waste 
containers. The cost of this service is reviewed annually and published 
as part of the Council’s Fees and Charges register.  
 
Please refer to the Council’s website 
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/bulky-item-
collection.aspx to find out what items the Council accept on the Bulky 
Waste Service.  

Denbighshire operate a booking system for Domestic Bulky and White 
good collections. When booking you will be presented with the next 
available collection dates for your postcode. 

Your collection will be made between 7am and 4pm on the day you 
selected. 

Make sure you have clearly specified what you want collected, as nothing 
else will be removed. 

If you find you are unable to present the items for collection for your 
booked collection, please call ??? as soon as possible to reschedule the 
service. We will usually only reschedule a collection once. 

You should leave your items for collection where they are clearly visible in 
your front garden if you have one. Do not place them on the public 
highway. 

If you do not have a front garden or other open and accessible area for us 
to collect them from you can place them on the public highway. However, 
you must only do this after 8.30pm on the day before the collection is due, 
only beside the entrance to your own property and only if this does not 
cause an obstruction. 

We cannot collect items from inside your property, so if you need help 
moving the item outside, you should make these arrangements in advance 
of the collection date. 

Tudalen 60

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/bulky-item-collection.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/bulky-item-collection.aspx


Any cancellation requests for booked collections must be received at least 
two working days before the day of collection in order for a refund to be 
payable. For example, a collection booked for Friday would need to be 
cancelled by the end of the preceding Tuesday. 

If you require further information or advice, please contact us on:  

 

23. Encouraging compliance to the Household Waste and 

Recycling Service  

 

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-

plans-and-policies/policies/environmental-health/environmental-

health.aspx 

 

23. Presentation of waste 

Section 46 of the Environmental Protection Act, 1990 gives the council 

powers to prescribe: 

a. What containers (size, colour and specification) must be used for 

specific waste types 

b. Where and when the waste container should be presented for 

collection 

c. When waste containers should not be present on the public 

highway. 

d. What type of waste to present in each container. 

The legislation also provides the council with the legal right to refuse to 

collect waste that has not been presented correctly, such as excess 

waste, prohibited waste and waste put in the wrong containers. 
 

The Council recognises that sometimes people make mistakes and that 

some people may have genuine difficulties in complying with all the 

council’s requirements.  

Therefore, we operate a 3 step education/enforcement procedure, 

should we identify a household that has not complied to the Waste and 

Recycling Collection Policies relating  to the kerbside collection of 

household waste.  

 first stage will be Education from our officers, issuing households 

with an advice leaflet and an advice letter from the officer.  

 second stage will be the issuing of a Section 46 Notice under the 

Environmental Protection Act 1990.  Tudalen 61

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/policies/environmental-health/environmental-health.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/policies/environmental-health/environmental-health.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/policies/environmental-health/environmental-health.aspx


 final stage of the procedure results in a £100 fixed penalty notice 

being issued to a named householder.  

 

Where we encounter vulnerable households, who appear to lack 
understanding or physical capability to adhere to all our policies, we will 
not evoke the fixed penalty final stage. Instead officers will work with the 
residents and known carers (and landlords where applicable) to  help 
people manage their waste as best they can. Exemptions from recycling 
some or all aspects of waste can be put in place where evidenced by a 
council waste officer and/or carer/medical practitioner. 
 
 

24. Householder Duty of Care 

Occasionally the Council identifies individuals that have fly tipped waste, 

or given their waste to someone else who had subsequently fly tipped 

their waste. People who dump their waste face a £250 fixed penalty 

charge, or even prosecution irrelevant of the amount of waste dumped. 

Enforcement procedures are dealt with under Section 33 of the 

Environmental Protection Act. Dumped waste will be treated as a fly 

tipping offence instead of a Section 46 offence if at least one of the 

following applies: 

 

Residents must ensure they always dispose of their waste responsibly. 

The Householder Duty of Care (section 34 of the Environmental 

Protection Act 1990), puts a legal requirement on the householder to 

make sure that anyone taking waste away on their behalf also disposes 

of the waste responsibly. If this is a paid for service, the householder 

must carry out a range of checks to make sure the company collecting 

you waste is a registered waste carrier and has deposited your waste at 

a licensed waste site. 

 
 

25 Other Charges 
 

 Waste containers are chargeable for delivery, see section 14. 

 Containers repairs are chargeable. 

 Green waste is a paid for service, see section 4b. 

 Bulk item collections is a paid for service, see section 22 

 Non re-useable sacks beyond the yearly allocation are chargeable.  
 
For more information on all these chargers see: 
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-and-
recycling-charges.aspx 

Tudalen 62

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-and-recycling-charges.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-and-recycling-charges.aspx


 
 

26 Use of Household Waste Recycling Centres 

26a. Denbighshire Council has three static household Recycling 

Centres, where a range of unwanted household items can be taken.  

Denbighshire residents are also able to access household waste parks 

in Conwy County. Charges will apply for DIY and construction waste and 

some other non-household items.  

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-

parks/recycling-and-waste-disposal.aspx details the requirements for 

accessing and using the recycling parks. 

 
26b. Pop-Up Recycling Parks 

A year-round Pop-Up Recycling Park Service is offered in Corwen (1st 

and 3rd Saturday mornings and Llangollen (2nd and 3rd Saturday 

mornings) for residents of the Dee Valley MAG area. Visit 

www.denbighshire.gov.uk/ to find out locations, times and what waste 

can be accepted. 

26c. Booking system 

Anyone accessing a recycling park must book a slot through the 

Council’s Website, or by telephoning the contact centre. Proof of 

booking and residency will be required. 

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/visiting-

our-waste-and-recycling-parks.aspx 

26.d Restrictions apply to the size and type of vehicle that can be used 

to bring waste to the recycling parks. Permits may be requested by 

householders wishing to use a commercial vehicle to transport their own 

household waste. Further details are provided here: 

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-

parks/recycling-and-waste-disposal.aspx 
 
 

Tudalen 63

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-parks/recycling-and-waste-disposal.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-parks/recycling-and-waste-disposal.aspx
http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/visiting-our-waste-and-recycling-parks.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/visiting-our-waste-and-recycling-parks.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-parks/recycling-and-waste-disposal.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/bins-and-recycling/waste-parks/recycling-and-waste-disposal.aspx


Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Denbighshire County Council 

Absorbent hygiene products (AHP)  

Terms and conditions 

1 
 

 
Eligibility 
 

1.1 Households with babies or children in nappies, and adults who use incontinence products, 
can register for the new AHP collections service.  
 

1.2 The property address provided when registering to the new service must be the main home of 
the person who produces the waste.  
 

1.3 Residents not eligible are: 
 

1.3.1 those whose visitors produce the AHP waste, such as grandchildren or older relatives 
who don’t live at the property, and 

1.3.2 registered childminders, people that own/manage nurseries, care homes, nursing 
homes or hospitals. Businesses must arrange a separate trade waste collection for 
their AHP waste.  

 
Your AHP Service 
 

2.1 Denbighshire County Council (DCC) will collect AHP waste from residents’ homes every 
week, once registered for the service. 
 

2.2 Once registered, DCC will deliver the following items to the registered home: 
2.2.1 a black caddy with purple lid, 
2.2.2 a supply of purple single-use sacks (to put inside the caddy), and 
2.2.3 a letter confirming the collection day, with a reminder about what we will and won’t 

collect as part of this new service. 
 

2.3 The types of AHP waste DCC will collect as part of the new collections service include: 
2.3.1 nappies, nappy bags and wipes,  
2.3.2 disposable bed pans and liners,  
2.3.3 incontinence pads,  
2.3.4 bed and chair pads, 
2.3.5 colostomy and stoma bags,  
2.3.6 catheter bags and urine bottles, and 
2.3.7 plastic gloves and disposable aprons. 
 

2.4 DCC will not collect the following items as part of the new AHP collections service: 
2.4.1 clinical waste, such as dressings or bandages contaminated with blood, needles, 
syringes and other sharps, 
2.4.2 sanitary products, such as sanitary liners, tampons and towels, 
2.4.3 any items that can be recycled from home using other Council-provided containers, 
and  
2.4.4 any items that can be recycled at a Council-managed Household Waste Recycling 
Centre. 
 

2.5 Registered residents should: 
2.5.1 put only the correct items in their purple single-use sacks, 
2.5.2 tie their sacks securely, then put them in their black caddy, 
2.5.3 close the lid on their caddy, 
2.5.4 place their caddy at their collection point before 7am on their collection day, and 
2.5.5 collect their caddy from their collection point once DCC has collected its contents. 
 

2.6 DCC will continue to provide assisted collections to residents who currently receive this 
service. 
 

Tudalen 65



Denbighshire County Council 

Absorbent hygiene products (AHP)  

Terms and conditions 

2 
 

2.7 Registrations last for one year. DCC will contact those registered before the end of their one-
year registration asking if they’d like to register for another year, subject to meeting the 
service’s criteria. 

 

Breach of Terms  
 
3.1   If a registered user puts items in their caddy that shouldn’t be there, DCC will consider this a:  

3.1.1 First offence. DCC won’t collect its contents. DCC will: 
3.1.1.1 deliver to the registered resident a flyer that’ll remind them about what they can and can’t put 

in their caddy, and  
3.1.1.2 put a sticker or tag on their caddy asking them to sort its contents, so they may put out their 

correctly filled caddy again on their next collection day 
3.1.2 Second offence. DCC won’t collect its contents. DCC will: 
3.1.2.1 deliver to the registered resident another flyer and  
3.1.2.2 put another sticker or tag on their caddy. 
3.1.3 Third offence. DCC won’t collect its contents. DCC will: 
3.1.3.1 cancel the resident’s registration for the service. 

 
3.2 If a registered resident uses the service to dispose of anything other than for its intended 

purpose, DCC will cancel their registration. 
 

3.3 If a registered resident fails to provide truthful and accurate information when registering for 
the service, DCC will cancel their registration. 

 
3.4 If a registered resident doesn’t use the service for three collections in a row, DCC will cancel 

their registration. If the resident would like to continue using the service, they’ll have to 
register again. 
 

3.5 If a registered resident needs to suspend their registration to the service at any time, for any 
reason – for example, if they’re going on holiday for an extended period – they should 
contact DCC. 

 
 

 

Tudalen 66



Denbighshire County Council  

Absorbent hygiene products (AHP)  

FAQs 

1 
 

 

What are ‘absorbent hygiene products’ (AHP)? 

‘Absorbent hygiene products’, known as ‘AHP’, are items used to absorb bodily fluids and wastes, 

such as nappies, nappy bags and wipes, as well as adult incontinence products. 

 

What is the new AHP waste collections service? 

From September 2023, we’re introducing a free collections service for your AHP. If you register for 

this new service, we’ll collect this waste from you every week. 

After you’ve registered for the service, we’ll deliver to you: 

 a black caddy with purple lid for you to put out your AHP waste for us to collect, a 

 a supply of purple single-use sacks (to put inside the caddy), and a 

 letter confirming your collection day, with a reminder about what we will and won’t collect as 

part of this new service. 

We’ll deliver these items to your home between 7 August and 8 September, before the new service 

launches on Monday 11 September. 

 

Why are you introducing new collections for AHP? 

We know that up to 20% of what residents put in their black bin or pink sacks for non-recyclable waste 

is AHP waste. We’re introducing this new service to move this waste out of those containers, to create 

more space for your non-recyclable waste. 

We’re also currently considering ways in which we can recycle the AHP we collect from you. We’re 

starting to collect this waste separately to your other recycling and non-recyclable waste from 

September 2023, so that when we have a contract in place with a recycling facility, we’ll be ready to 

start recycling your AHP straight away. 

Once we’re able to recycle AHP waste, it could be used to produce a variety of new products, which 

might include fibreboards and acoustic panels for floors and walls, and as an engineering material 

used in road surfaces. 

 

How can I register for the new AHP collections service? 

You may register for our new AHP collections service from Monday 3 July 2023. Click here to register. 

(Insert link)  

A maximum number of 1,000 homes may register for this service during this first registration period, 

which we’re limiting to homes with LL16 and LL17 postcodes.  

Once we’ve delivered this service in these areas for around six months, we’ll expand the service 

countywide. We’ll communicate the next registration period, which will be open to all Denbighshire 

residents, nearer the time. 

If you choose not to register to our new collections service, or you’re not eligible to register during this 

initial registration period, please continue to put your AHP waste in your black bin or pink sacks.  

If you live in a flat with communal recycling and non-recyclable waste bins, this new AHP collections 

service doesn’t yet apply to you. We’ll tell you when this new service is being rolled out where you 

Tudalen 67



Denbighshire County Council  

Absorbent hygiene products (AHP)  

FAQs 

2 
 

live. Until then, please continue to put your AHP waste in your communal bin for non-recyclable 

waste. 

 

What types of AHP will you collect? 

We’ll collect: 

 nappies, nappy bags and wipes,  

 disposable bed pans and liners,  

 incontinence pads,  

 bed and chair pads, 

 colostomy and stoma bags,  

 catheter bags and urine bottles, and 

 plastic gloves and disposable aprons. 

We won’t collect: 

 clinical waste, such as dressings or bandages contaminated with blood, needles, syringes 

and other sharps, 

 sanitary products, such as sanitary liners, tampons and towels, 

 any items that can be recycled from home using your other Council-provided containers, and  

 any items that can be recycled at your local Household Waste Recycling Centre.  

 

What will happen if I put the wrong items in my caddy for AHP? 

If you put items in your caddy that shouldn’t be there, we won’t collect its contents. Instead, we’ll: 

 give you a flyer that’ll remind you about what you can and can’t put in your caddy, and 

 put a sticker or tag on your caddy asking you to sort its contents, so you may put your 

correctly filled caddy out again on your next collection day.  

If you put the wrong items in your caddy on a second occasion, we won’t collect its contents. We’ll: 

 give you another flyer and  

 put another sticker or tag on your caddy. 

If you put the wrong items in your caddy on a third occasion, we won’t collect its contents. We’ll: 

 cancel your registration from the service. 

 

How much does the new AHP collections service cost? 

The new AHP collections service is free for residents living in Denbighshire. 

 

How often will you collect AHP? 

Once you’ve registered for the new service, we’ll deliver to you a letter confirming your collection day. 

We’ll collect AHP waste from your home every week. 

 

 

Tudalen 68



Denbighshire County Council  

Absorbent hygiene products (AHP)  

FAQs 

3 
 

 

Who can register for the new AHP collections service? 

Households with babies or children in nappies, and adults who use incontinence products, can 

register for the new AHP collections service.  

The property address provided when registering to the new service must be the main home of the 

person who produces the waste.  

This service is not available to: 

 residents whose visitors produce the AHP waste, such as grandchildren or older relatives who 

don’t live at the property, or 

 registered childminders, people that own/manage nurseries, care homes, nursing homes or 

hospitals. Businesses must arrange a separate trade waste collection for their AHP waste. 

(Insert link) 

 

I look after my grandchildren who use nappies. Can I register for the service? 

No. The new AHP collections service is only available to homes where the residents produce this 

waste.  

Please either: 

 ask your children’s parents or guardians to register for the service – if they have a LL16 and 

LL17 postcode – and have them take the AHP waste from your home so they may put it in 

their caddy, or  

 put this waste in your black bin or pinks sacks. 

 

I’m a registered childminder / I own/manage a nursery. Can I register for the service? 

No. Businesses must arrange a separate trade waste collection for their AHP waste. (Insert link) 

 

I’ve registered for the new AHP collections service but not yet received my black caddy. What 

should I do? 

If you’ve not received your new black caddy by Saturday 9 September, please contact us. (Insert link) 

 

How should I present my AHP to be collected? 

1. put only the correct items in your purple single-use sacks, 

2. tie your sacks securely, then put them in your black caddy, 

3. close the lid on your caddy, 

4. place your caddy at your collection point before 7am on your collection day, and 

5. collect your caddy from your collection point once we’ve collected its contents. 

Do not use any other type of container; use only the Council-provided purple single-use sacks and 

black caddy.  

Do not put out additional AHP alongside your black caddy. This is known as ‘side waste’. We do not 

collect ‘side waste’ and you may have to pay a fine. 

Tudalen 69



Denbighshire County Council  

Absorbent hygiene products (AHP)  

FAQs 

4 
 

If you have more AHP to put out for us to collect each week than you can fit in your caddy, please 

contact us so we may discuss your needs. (Insert link) 

 

My AHP caddy has broken / gone missing. How can I get a replacement? 

If you need a replacement caddy, please contact us and we’ll deliver it to your home. (Insert link) 

When ordering your replacement caddy online, you’ll see up-to-date information about how long it’s 

likely to take us to deliver this to you. 

If we’re unable to deliver your caddy in time for your next collection, please put your AHP waste in 

your black bin or pink sacks for non-recyclable waste. Please don’t use any other type of container to 

put out your AHP for us to collect. 

 

I’ve run out of purple single-use sacks. How can I order more? 

When we deliver your black caddy and supply of purple single-use sacks to your home, we’ll also 

deliver to you a set of ‘reorder’ tags. When you’re about to run out of sacks, please attach one of 

these tags to the handle of your caddy, and we’ll leave a new supply of sacks on top of, or alongside, 

your caddy. 

 

What should I do if I have more AHP to put out to be collected each week than I can fit in the 

new caddy? 

If you have more AHP to put out for us to collect each week than you can fit in your caddy, please 

contact us so we may discuss your needs. (Insert link) 

Until we’re able to provide a solution, please put your extra AHP waste in your black bin or pink sacks 

for non-recyclable waste. 

Please don’t use any other type of container to put out your AHP for us to collect. And don’t put out 

additional AHP alongside your black caddy. This is known as ‘side waste’. We do not collect ‘side 

waste’ and you may have to pay a fine. 

 

How should I dispose of used sanitary products, such as sanitary liners, tampons and towels?  

Do not put these items in your caddy for us to collect. 

Please wrap these items in a tissue – or in a nappy sack-type bag if you prefer – then put them in 

your black bin or pink sacks for non-recyclable waste.  

 

I currently receive an ‘assisted collection’. Will this continue if I register for the AHP 

collections service?  

Yes. If you currently receive an ‘assisted collection’, we’ll continue to provide this service for your AHP 

collections. You don’t need to register again for this service. 

 

I’m struggling to put my AHP out for you to collect. Can you please help me with this? 

Tudalen 70



Denbighshire County Council  

Absorbent hygiene products (AHP)  

FAQs 

5 
 

If you’re temporarily or permanently unable to put your AHP – and other recycling and non-recyclable 

waste – out for us to collect due to you having limited mobility, and there is no one else to help you, 

you can contact us to apply for an ‘assisted collection’ and we’ll assess your situation. (Insert link) 

An ‘assisted collection’ is when our crews collect your recycling and non-recyclable waste from an 

agreed collection point that’s convenient and easy for you to access. 

 

I wasn't able to register for the AHP service even though I have a LL16/LL17 postcode. What 

should I do?  

If you were unable to register for our new collections service during this initial registration period, 

please continue to put your AHP waste in your black bin or pink sacks. 

Once we’ve delivered this service for around six months, we’ll expand the service countywide, and 

you’ll be able to register again for these collections. We’ll communicate the next registration period, 

which will be open to all Denbighshire residents, nearer the time. 

 

How should I get rid of my AHP waste if I don’t want to register for this new service? 

If you choose not to register for our new AHP collections service, please continue to put your AHP 

waste in your black bin or pink sacks for non-recyclable waste. 

 

What should I do if I move home? 

If you register for our AHP collections service and you’re moving home, please contact us once you 

know your moving date and new address. (Insert link)  

If you’re moving to another home in Denbighshire, we’ll advise whether you need to take your existing 

black caddy and purple single-use sacks with you to your new home, and whether there will be a 

change to your collection day. 

If you’re moving to another home outside the county, we’ll cancel your registration for this service. 

 

What should I do if I no longer produce AHP waste? 

If you no longer produce AHP waste and therefore no longer need us to collect this waste from your 

home, please contact us. (Insert link to webform or email address.) 

Once you’ve cancelled your registration, please leave your black caddy and any unused purple 

single-use sacks at your collection point on your next collection day for us to collect. 

 

I’ve heard you’re reducing how often you collect our non-recyclable waste, from every two 

weeks to every four weeks. Does this mean I have to hold onto my AHP waste for up to four 

weeks before you collect it from my home? 

No. Whilst we are changing how often we collect your non-recyclable waste from every two weeks to 

every four weeks from March 2024, we’ll continue to collect AHP waste every week if you register for 

this service. 

Before we make this change to your non-recyclable waste collections, every resident in Denbighshire 

will have the opportunity to register for the AHP collections service. 

Tudalen 71



Denbighshire County Council  

Absorbent hygiene products (AHP)  

FAQs 

6 
 

 

Whilst you’re considering the most efficient way to recycle AHP, is there a way to avoid using 

disposable nappies in the first place? 

Whilst recycling is a great way to reduce our carbon emissions and help prevent climate change, it’s 

even better for our planet if we reuse the products we buy and minimise our use of single-use items. 

To help you do this, we offer a Reusable Nappy Voucher Scheme. This scheme provides vouchers 

worth £25, which you may use to buy reusable nappies. These items are comfortable, can save you 

money, are easy to use, and reduce the amount of waste you produce. (Insert link) 

 

What if I don’t want to register for the new AHP collections service now, but I change my mind 

after the first registration period ends? 

Once we’ve delivered this service for around six months, we’ll expand the service countywide, and 

you’ll be able to register again for these collections.  

We’ll communicate the next registration period, which will be open to all Denbighshire residents, 

nearer the time. 

 

Will I have to renew my registration at any time? 

Yes. You’ll need to re-register for the AHP collections service every year.  

We’ll contact you before the end of your one-year registration asking if you’d like to register for 

another year. 

If you don’t use the service for three collections in a row, we’ll cancel your registration. If you’d like to 

continue using this service, you’ll have to register again.  

If you need to suspend your registration at any time, for any reason – for example, if you’re going on 

holiday for an extended period – please contact us. (Insert link) 

 

What happens to my AHP once collected? 

Initially, the AHP waste we collect will be incinerated, creating a small amount of energy that will go 

into the National Grid, to power homes and communities across the country. The remaining ash is 

recycled into building materials, such as cement.  

We’re starting to collect this waste separately to your other recycling and non-recyclable waste from 

September 2023, so that when we have a contract in place with a recycling facility, we’ll be ready to 

start recycling your AHP straight away. 

Once we’re able to recycle AHP waste, it could be used to produce a variety of new products, which 

might include fibreboards and acoustic panels for floors and walls, and as an engineering material 

used in road surfaces. 

 

What should I do if someone puts their AHP in my caddy? 

If someone puts their AHP in your caddy without your permission, please contact us. (Insert link) 

 

Tudalen 72



Denbighshire County Council  

Absorbent hygiene products (AHP)  

FAQs 

7 
 

Can I register for this service on behalf of another person? 

Yes. You can register for this service on behalf of another person, such as a family member or friend. 

When you register, make sure you include the address of the property from which you’d like us to 

collect the AHP, which must be the main home of your family member or friend that produces the 

waste. 

 

I’m worried my neighbours will be able to tell I have an incontinence issue if I use this service. 

What can I do? 

If you’re concerned about using the new AHP collections service, you can continue to put your AHP 

waste in your black bin or pink sacks for non-recyclable waste.  

If you’ve registered for the AHP collections service and would like to cancel your registration, please 

contact us. (Insert link) 

 

 

Your recycling is making a BIG difference in Denbighshire. 

Thank you for continuing to do the right thing and for doing your bit for the  

environment, by sorting your waste and recycling what you can. 

 

Tudalen 73



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



OPTION 5 (Preferred) -
Weekly Kerbside Sort
(including food waste), 4-
weekly residual, AHP service
Well-being Impact Assessment Report

This report summarises the likely impact of the proposal on the social, economic, environmental
and cultural well-being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.

Assessment Number: 407

Brief description:

This assessment is required as the Council needs to fundamentally
change the way we collect household waste to further improve recycling
in the County as part of strategy to meet Welsh Government 70%
recycling target by 2024/25 and to address on-going budget pressure
expected to rise to £900,000 by 2019/20 due to the current cost of
sending our mixed blue bin recycling for further separation at a Materials
recovery Facility. In Option 5 (preferred) the comingled blue recycling
240l bin would be replaced with a TrolliBocs System, where residents
present sorted waste into separate stackable containers. The Trollibocs
and the existing food waste caddy would be collected weekly on the
same vehicle, resulting in resource revenue savings from the provision
of higher quality, pre-sorted recycling. . Residual waste would be
collected every 4 weeks in a 240l black bin (as opposed to fortnightly in
a 140/180l bin) which is projected to reduce the amount of waste that
could have been recycled going in the black bin (currently 51% of items
in the black bin could have been recycled on our other kerbside
services). An optional human hygiene waste service would be offered to
remove "smelly waste" from the residual bin where required. New
recycling waste streams would be targeted, including batteries, small
electrical, electronic equipment (WEEE) and textiles and collected on the
same day as the recycling, but every fortnight. Currently residents put
paper, card, wax cartons, plastic containers/bottles, can and glass
bottles/jars altogether in a 240litre blue bin which is collected
fortnightly.

Date Completed: 19/10/2018 08:29:46 Version: 4Page 43Tudalen 75



Completed by: Tara Dumas

Responsible Service: Highways & Environmental Services

Localities affected by
the proposal: Whole County,

Who will be affected by
the proposal?

All Residents / Households in Denbighshire; Operational Waste Team as
new model rolled out

Was this impact
assessment completed
as a group?

Yes

Page 44Tudalen 76



IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider
how the proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in
a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach

 ( 3 out of 4 stars ) Actual score : 27 / 30.

Implications of the score

Implementing the preferred option will align DCC to the Welsh Government waste collection
blueprint, meaning that we are operating to a consistent approach to other Welsh LA's in order to
maximise the quantity and quality of recyclable household waste we collect. The preferred option
seeks to restrict residual capacity further than the blueprint by The Welsh Government have carried
out relevant sustainability and economic appraisals on their blue print (Independently reviewed in
March 2016 by Eunomia) to determine it to be the most economically and environmentally practical
approach to managing household waste.

Summary of impact

Well-being Goals

A prosperous Denbighshire Positive

A resilient Denbighshire Positive

A healthier Denbighshire Neutral

A more equal Denbighshire Neutral

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities Neutral

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh
language Neutral

A globally responsible Denbighshire Positive

Main conclusions

Overall the proposed project to Remodel the Waste Service Collection should have positive impacts
in terms of a prosperous and resilient and a globally responsible Denbighshire as the new service will
increase recycling performance by at least 3%. The higher quality recyclable stream will support the
adoption of EU Circular Economy measures and the Welsh Economic Action Plan. The model is also
the most cost efficient of all options considered, bringing in a new income stream that protects other
council services from further resource reductions. There is a neutral impact on equality due to the
introduction of a new service to deal with hygiene waste sometimes produced by young families and
the elderly. We have reviewed (currently in draft) our waste policies to ensure exemptions can be
awarded to households that struggle to participate fully in the recycling service for genuine physical
or metal health reasons. There are no health implications for the new service. Residual waste will be
collected less frequently but smelly waste such as nappies and food waste will be collected weekly.
There is a neutral impact on vibrant culture and welsh language as all communications will be
available in Welsh and English. There will be a significant focus on community engagement
throughout and post implementation, encouraging intergenerational learning (young people as
ambassadors) and motivational communications material. There is a neutral impact on cohesivePage 45Tudalen 77



communities as the new waste model supports and strengthens a social enterprise operating model
for the collection and re-use of textiles, and the service changes are supported through a new (draft)
household waste collection policy, to support the regulation of the new operating model.

Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

 We have consulted published research or guides that inform us about the likely impact of the
proposal

 We have involved an expert / consulted a group who represent those who may affected by the
proposal

 We have engaged with people who will be affected by the proposal

Page 46Tudalen 78



THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE
WORLD

A prosperous Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

Justification for
impact

The new waste service will secure the long term future of the service and
associated jobs and importantly contribute to increasing recycling rates in
the County which will minimise residual waste generated by the County's
residents. There is an overall reduction in the Council's carbon footprint
through enhanced capture of recycling, especially food waste. Materials
recycled are of higher quality which will help stimulate growth in the
manufacturing industry within the UK.

Further actions
required

Maximising the positive impacts from higher recycling rates will be
dependant on undertaking a comprehensive communication campaign and
ongoing education strategy that provides both instructional and
motivational information to encourage people to take the extra effort to
recycle more and separate their household waste items into various
containers. A YouGov Survey stated that 70% of people want to know
what happens to their rubbish and 32% would be more likely to separate
their materials if they knew what happened to them. the Viridor Recycling
Index 2017 (consumer survey) showed that only a quarter of people
believed their waste was properly recycled and showed a clear need for
better education, with seven in ten (69%) people feeling frustrated about
not having enough education materials on recycling. There is an
opportunity to re-engage with Denbighshire citizens to provide the
information that will inform and influence pro-environmental behaviours.
Consideration to reducing manual handling concerns will be given when
specifying the new kerbside recycling vehicles, including consultation with
Unions and the workforce. W and R team to investigate introduction of a
"ready for work" programme to train up new operatives (workforce
succession planning) and career pathways opportunities for existing
employees to upskill.

Positive impacts identified:

A low carbon society

Application of the waste hierarchy, enhanced opportunity for closed loop
recycling, greater quantities of waste recycled, less vehicle passes to each
households over a 4 week period, vehicle haulage movements as
recycling is bailed locally - so overall greater environmental benefits.
Increased in recycling performance of 3.1% projected. There is a wide
evidence base to show that Kerbside Sort yields a lower carbon footprint
than co-mingled collections. The carbon impacts of different methods of
collection and post collection sorting were shown by the ADAS report for
London Borough of Camden which stated that: “The carbon footprint of the
whole process for the co-mingled collection, transfer and MRF is 77%
greater than for the kerbside sorted recyclate collection system.” 
High quality materials are more likely to be used in closed loop recycling
where glass bottles and jars are recycled into similar products, paper into
paper and so on. The carbon benefits of the closed loop recycling of glass
were demonstrated in a 2006 paper "The impact of the carbon agenda on
the waste management business", Grant Thornton, Oakdene Hollins.
The reduced carbon impact of kerbside sort vehicles compared to large
Refuse Collection Vehicles currently used to collect recycling in DCC are
considerably lower, as supported by the following paper "Kerbside
Recycling in Wales: Environmental Costs, Waste and Resources action
Programme (WRAP), March 2009.Page 47Tudalen 79



Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

All new waste collection rounds will undertake route optimisation analysis
to reduce unnecessary mileage and optimise efficiency, as well as round
risk assessments to avoid traffic congestion where practical. The changes
will be supported by a communications plan, to include face to face public
engagement, a schools education package, and revised instructional
material. Option 5 will result in significant capital investment in local
authority depots (North Wales) and new waste containers. There may be
an opportunity to combine the provision of salt barns with the depot
bulking facilities at one of the sites, improving the way we manage winter
maintenance resources.

Economic
development

Collected recycling will be of adequate quality to be reprocessed in the UK
(as opposed to being shipped oversees), encouraging home grown
manufacturing industries to develop/expand. Collecting high quality
recycling through source segregation is a priority for Welsh Government
as they recognise the opportunities the EU "Circular Economy" package
brings to helping Wales grow its own economy, and in a more sustainable
way (www.gov.wales news article "Wales leading the way towards
becoming a circular economy" 28th June 2018. Positive impacts of the
circular economy on economic growth are also recognised in the Welsh
Government's Economic Action Plan.
The paper by the Resources Association "Putting quality recycling at the
heart of a circular economy" August 2015 concludes that mandatory
source separation of recyclables, including biowaste, would reduce
recycling contamination and create new economic opportunity. By
example, an article by Simon Weston (LetsRecycle.com 17th July 2017)
director of raw materials (Confederation of Paper Industries) states
"Recent work conducted by the Confederation of Paper Industries (CPI)
estimates that an increase of one percentage point in contamination would
increase costs by about £8 million per annum across the entire UK mill
system. For a large paper reprocessor this could equate to as much as
£1.25 million per percentage point increase for each 100,000 tonnes of
raw material procured. These sorts of additional costs undermine the
viability of domestic re-processors when compared with foreign
competitors using other material streams, and could lead to plant closures
and job losses."
Kerbside Sort systems yield very low contamination rates (1% Friends of
the Earth, compared to Commingled recycling schemes that rarely
achieve contamination rates below 5% and often in excess of 10%. 
Hygiene waste will be collected separately in the Option. It is possible that
this waste stream can be recycled and future discussions with Welsh
Government are anticipated over the opportunity for this waste to be re-
processed in Denbighshire. This would created further jobs through the
construction and operation of a new facility.

Quality skills for the
long term

Waste operatives will require enhanced manual handling training. In
addition, the service will be modernised to closely monitor recycling habits
of individuals through enhanced data capture of weight based information.
Team members will be trained to use route optimisation software. DCC's
waste technical team will be trained to collate and report on a wider range
of performance data. The team will be required to deliver behaviour
change messages to a wide range of audiences, including to school groups
and private/social landlords. Increased procurement skills and experience
will also be required. The service change would be supported through the
adoption of an environmental enforcement policy which the team will be
required to adopt. Whilst the existing enforcement team have all existing
knowledge and skills, wider adoption by the rest of the team will be
required.

Page 48Tudalen 80



Quality jobs for the
long term

All waste operatives will be required to become "recycling ambassadors"
as their acceptance/rejection of presented material will be fundamental to
providing weekly feedback to the residents about what can and can not be
collected on the kerbside sort scheme. Expected that Waste team jobs will
be secured, may be need for additional Waste Team members depending
on future operational model - to be confirmed as part of further
development of Business Case. The baseline is unaffordable and jobs
across other council service are at risk should we not change the way we
deliver our services.
This option will secure at least 9 full time jobs in a local Social Enterprise,
and support at least 18 people with learning disabilities, through the
collection, sorting , cleaning and resale of textiles.

Childcare There are no known increased benefits arising from changing from the
baseline to Option 5. Working hours are not modelled to change.

Negative impacts identified:

A low carbon society

approx. 35,000 Blue recycling bins and 30,000 grey residual bins will
become redundant but recovered bins will be collected and sent for
recycling. Recovered plastic is often recycled into new waste containers.
procurement of new containers will specify some recycled content (whilst
maintaining strength / life expectancy of the container).

Option 4 and 5 include the option to direct deliver recycling from the North
of the County to a Conwy facility (additional 6-8 miles round
trip)increasing the distance travelled by affected vehicles. This is yet to be
decided.

Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

Option 4 and 5 include the option to direct deliver recycling from the North
of the County to a Conwy facility (additional 6-8 miles round
trip)increasing the distance travelled by affected vehicles.

Economic
development

None - the current receiver of comingled recycling would prefer source
segregated material, due to higher quality of paper.

Quality skills for the
long term

It is envisaged that the increased manual handling requirements on the
kerbside sort option will lead to a number of operatives seeking
redeployment or retirement. This will produce a knowledge gap in the
service for which we must prepare over the next 2 years.

Quality jobs for the
long term

The manual handling implications of the kerbside sort system may present
as a barrier to older operatives or operatives with pre-existing conditions
that limit repetitive lifting operations. A key HR work stream has been set
up to identify redeployment opportunities for staff who may not be able to
carry out the new duties and jobs will be re-evaluated to reflect the
change in operations. The Service has already identified the Council's
Career Pathways programme as a strategy to deliver succession planning
and develop skills of existing employees. They are also proactively
engaged in promoting career opportunities externally, such as attending
job fairs.

Childcare There are no known increased implications arising from changing from the
baseline to Option 5.

A resilient Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

Page 49Tudalen 81



Justification for
impact

Overall, despite potential for negative consequences due to potential
increase in collection vehicle mileage and possible negative behaviour
reactions by disgruntled residents who may take against recycling agenda
as a consequence overall it is felt the overall message will raise
awareness of the importance of recycling and the new model will support
the capacity to further increase domestic recycling rates

Further actions
required

Negative behaviour issues will be tackled through targeted
communications on the benefits of the change to collection model to try to
get all residents on board. As far as is possible new collection vehicles will
be the most fuel efficient models affordable to reduce fuel consumption
and emissions as far as practical to mitigate this issue.

Positive impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the
natural environment

This option enables the reprocessing industry to operate closed loop
recycling solutions, saving the need to use virgin materials extracted fro
the natural environment across the world. More recycling will be
recovered than the baseline option. Evidence suggest that people adopting
pro-recycling behaviours on a kerbside sort system become more
supportive of wider environmental issues.

Biodiversity in the
built environment

Currently around 10,000 households are receiving a sack collection for
residual/recyclable waste. Sacks are ripped open by scavenging animals
(seagulls, rats and foxes) providing an unnatural source of food, leading to
unhealthy increases in populations of some species that may displace
other species. This option will seek to reduce the number of households on
a sack collection and provide a more regulated system that will prohibit
residents placing food waste into sacks. The Trollibocs system does help
contain litter as it must be presented lidded but will require enforcement
to ensure boxes are not presented off the trolley and without lids.

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

Option will improve and increase domestic recycling performance and
produce cleaner material more suitable for closed loop recycling.

Reduced energy/fuel
consumption

Food waste is co-collected on the same recycling vehicle as dry material
and the number of residual collection passes per month are reduced.
Overall this results is less vehicle movements.

People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity

New collection model will further raise awareness of need to and issues
around recycling. A communications Strategy has been developed and
includes and Education Campaign to promote pro-recycling behaviours in
young people, and encourage them to take home important messages.

Flood risk
management

Any changes in use to the Lon Parcwr depot to receive waste will require
enhanced flood mitigation due to proximity of river. This option is still
being considered and will be revisited if this depot will be used.

Negative impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the
natural environment

Any development at the Lon Parcwr Depot could have an adverse effect
on the local environment (Salmon River adjacent) and therefore
consultation with NRW and Planning will inform depot options appraisal.
As a result of the service change around 35,000 blue wheeled bins and up
to 30,000 black wheeled bins will become redundant. These will be
collected for recycling into new bins. To partially offset the environmental
impact, new containers will contain the optimum recycled content whilst
maintaining durability. Residents will asked to request a larger black bin
only if they need it, in order to reduce wastage and cost.

Page 50Tudalen 82



Biodiversity in the
built environment

Development of a waste transfer facility could impact, depending on
location, yet to be determined.

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

May encourage negative behaviour from disgruntled Residents who take
against new arrangements and deliberately reduce recycling efforts. Many
local authorities have restricted residual waste capacity and reduced
collections to 3 weekly. there is no evidence to suggest an increase in fly
tipping in these authorities. However, it is necessary to support these
service changes with fair but firm household waste collection policy and
resource enforcement activities adequately to ensure that dumping of
rubbish and deliberately cross contaminating waste streams is
appropriately regulated.

Reduced energy/fuel
consumption

New collection model may generate additional distance travelled that may
increase fuel consumption - to be confirmed once new collection model
analysed in detail and location of tipping facilities are confirmed. Initially,
households may take extra journeys to the household recycling parcs to
dispose of excess waste. Overall, capacity for their waste will be increased
by 57litres each week. Therefore as long as waste is segregated it should
be able to be managed kerbside. The household waste collection policy
will specify that households will qualify for additional capacity as long as
they can demonstrate they recycle all they can, and capacity is a regular
issue. Residents taking "black bag" type waste to the Recycling Parcs will
be asked to segregate recyclables or the bags will be rejected. Therefore
encouraging the correct behaviours at home, negating the need for
additional journeys.

People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity

May encourage negative behaviour from disgruntled Residents who take
against new arrangements and deliberately reduce recycling

Flood risk
management

A healthier Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

Neutral overall as few relevant impacts, where potential impacts do exist
they are likely to me minimal

Further actions
required

Positives on engaging people in a positive way will be stressed and
highlighted as part of communications during/post implementation

Positive impacts identified:

A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being

This option requires the householder to do more to manage their waste
responsibly. More support will be offered to residents to comply and a
sustained and focussed environmental campaign will offer opportunities
for social norming and intergenerational learning, where schools and their
pupils encourage their communities to recycle more.

Access to good
quality, healthy food NONE

People’s emotional
and mental well-
being

Engaging people further in the need and activity of increasing recycling
will engage them in a positive activity that can improve their sense of
participation and doing good. There is evidence that people using a
kerbside sort system are more "bought into" recycling as they believe
more strongly the material is going to be made into new products. There
is also evidence to suggest engaged recyclers are more likely to engage
or be supportive of wider environmental initiatives.Page 51Tudalen 83



Access to healthcare NONE

Participation in
leisure opportunities NONE

Negative impacts identified:

A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being

There is a risk that those residents who do not currently engage with
DCC's waste collection system will find the new system more challenging.
therefore incidents of alleyway dumping may increase if not managed.
DCC will introduce a new enforcement policy and increased
communications programme to mitigate these risks.

Access to good
quality, healthy food NONE

People’s emotional
and mental well-
being

Possible issues with the change upsetting residents and affecting their well
being due to change and the need to adapt to new arrangements which
they may feel antagonism towards, or be fearful they will not be able to
cope with the new system.

Access to healthcare NONE

Participation in
leisure opportunities NONE

A more equal Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

Most protected groups should be unaffected by the new waste model as
households already present and segregate their rubbish. There may be a
negative impact on residents with disability or who are elderly/infirm but
variants to the main system will be put in place to recognise and manage
this.

Further actions
required

Recycling rates in areas with poor economic circumstances is often lower
than in other areas. More targeted communications, such as roadshows,
School visits and door to door support will be required to ensure residents
in these areas fully understand the new system and take care to store
their waste and recycling containers on their own properties so they are
not abused or stolen.

Positive impacts identified:

Page 52Tudalen 84



Improving the well-
being of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

The new Service will include a free separate collection of
nappy/incontinence waste upon request, helping households with young
children, or residents with medical needs cope better with the Waste
Collection Service. This is an improvement to the existing service. Where
possible discreet but accessible collection points from inside the household
property boundary may be requested for those requiring the services due
to medical conditions.

People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage

NONE

Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes

All trollibocs and new waste containers will be provided free of charge
during the service change, even though the Council has a right to charge
for them. 

W and R department will liaise with the Council's troubled families team
and other appropriate outreach workers to ensure that waste
requirements are understood and passed on to households, should waste
issues or questions arise.

A schools Education programme will be launched to support the new waste
model, and priority focus will be given to schools in derived areas.
The new waste model will increase the opportunities for employment and
"ready to work" schemes.

People in poverty
People in poverty often produce more waste - especially food waste and
packaging waste. The new model provides greater capacity overall, on a 4
weekly basis to manage and contain waste.

Negative impacts identified:

Page 53Tudalen 85



Improving the well-
being of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

People with some disabilities may find the new way of presenting waste
more challenging, due to the need to separate waste into more
containers, and due to the fact that they may need a larger residual bin,
which could be heavier to manoeuvre. Consultation with disability user
group representatives has also identified that the new Trollibocs system
requires more "bending" that could prevent or put off some infirm
residents from using the service. For this reason a range of container
options will be offered to infirm or disabled residents and the Trolliboc
design will take account of feedback received through consultations. DCC
operate an assisted collection service so if a household find their residual
bin too heavy due to size can either be given a smaller bin (subject to
having capacity) two smaller bins, or may apply to be on the assist list
where we collect the bin from the curtilage of their property.
The new DCC waste enforcement policy will allow for households to be
listed as exempt from recycling some or all materials if a disability and/or
lack of support genuinely prevents them from doing so (e.g. sheltered
accommodation with occupants with dementia). 
Trollibocs can be provided with braille stickers where needed and all
associated instructional material will be provided in appropriate mediums
for sight impaired occupants.

Opportunities for upskilling and redeployment will be provided to
employees who are unable to manage the new manual handling
requirements of the collection service

People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage

If a household has suffered discrimination from sections of their
community in the past, they are more likely to be reported to us if they
struggle to comply with the new system. 
The DCC enforcement policy will always include an initial educational step
before enforcement action is taken to help residents to adjust to the new
requirements.

Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes

Recycling rates in areas with poor economic circumstances is often lower
than in other areas.

People in poverty

The Council has the right to issue a fixed penalty to residential occupants
for failing to recycle, or dumping black bag waste. In order fo rthe new
scheme to work longer term, it will be necessary to monitor activities of
non-compling households more rigorously, that could lead to FPN's being
issued. However, the revised Council enforcement procedure will ensure
that every household will be given the opportunity to correct behaviours
In addition, an early payment option with a reduced fine level can also be
included.

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities

Overall Impact Neutral

Page 54Tudalen 86



Justification for
impact

Overall positive impact as new collection model offers opportunities to
raise awareness of need to and increase ability to recycle for residents
and benefit this may bring to engagement and reducing littering but is
small risk it may also lead to feeling that change being done to residents
and an associated problem of littering and fly tipping may result however
this is thought to be low risk. The new system will be better regulated to
identify non-compliance quickly and target behaviour change processes
efficiently. There will be less (no) abandoned contaminated bins on the
streets in the future preffered model.
The Recycle More Waste Less Survey showed that households are
currently more likely to have space in their residual black bin on collection
day than their recycling bins, evidencing that the new model, to increase
recycling capacity by 57litres per week and reducing residual capacity by
10litres per week is manageable. This, combined with the fact that on
average 51% of the waste in the black bins could be recycled on our
existing services supports a move to shift the focus and resources to
collecting more recyclable waste.

Further actions
required

There is a perception that a reduced residual collection frequency could
attract pests. The new model will offer a weekly opt-in service for human
hygiene waste and the weekly food waste service will continue and be
expanded to all houses, meaning waste most likely to attract pests and
vermin should not be in the residual bin. Households remaining on a sack
collection will be provided with gull-proof sacks to contain their disposal
pink sacks. This will keep waste and odours contained and enable the
Council to regulate the capacity given to sack customers so that recycling
behaviours are still incentivised.

Positive impacts identified:

Safe communities
and individuals

All wheeled bins and Trollibocs will be assigned to individual properties,
encouraging ownership so they are not left out on the highway where they
pose a fire risk. Currently there are excessive numbers of abandoned blue
recycling bins on the public highway due to them becoming contaminated.
This will not be an issue in the new model.

Community
participation and
resilience

All residents have had the opportunity to be surveyed about the changes
and will have the opportunity to raise concerns they may have already
that can be addressed via the proposed changes or concerns they may
have in relation to the new change that can influence its design e.g.
frequency of nappy collections. 
A sustained schools education programme will result in a significant
number of young people becoming recycling ambassadors, and offering
learning /recycling opportunities within their communities.

The attractiveness of
the area

With improved recycling it may be that this leads to a reduction in litter /
waste as more recyclable material is captured via the new collection
arrangements. Sack collections and on street solutions (currently abused)
will be phased out wherever possible. Enhanced consultation with HMOs
and private landlors will seek to ensure adequate and appropriate
provision is made for tenanted properties.

Connected
communities

Intention to use social norming as a way to promote pro-recycling
behaviours and identify recycling champions.

Negative impacts identified:

Page 55Tudalen 87



Safe communities
and individuals

Residents who fail to comply with the new system and dump their waste
will lower the environmental quality where they live - leading to the
broken windows effect. The new waste model, however, will have boosted
resources to target those individuals with appropriate education and
enforcement action. It is not envisaged, however that these issues will
increase in number from the baseline model. Areas causing issues now
will be visited to ensure the optimal system is put in place to prevent
waste escaping into the environment.

Community
participation and
resilience

Many residents will not have actively engaged during the proposal phase
and provide resistance as the service is rolled out.

The attractiveness of
the area

Residents who fail to comply with the new system and dump their waste
will lower the environmental quality where they live - leading to the
broken windows effect. The new waste model, however, will have boosted
resources to target those individuals with appropriate education and
enforcement action. It is not envisaged, however that these issues will
increase in number from the baseline model. Areas causing issues now
will be visited to ensure the optimal system is put in place to prevent
waste escaping into the environment.
There is a perception that a reduced residual collection frequency could
attract pests.

Connected
communities

Initially some recyclers may disengage with the new service if they
disagree with the proposals. Mitigate with regular and targeted coms
using the Waste Recycling Action Programme's (WRAP's) segmentation
research. New scheme must be flexible to address individual needs where
appropriate.

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

There will be a lot of communications material produced to provide
instructional and motivational information to target audiences and the
public in general. Every opportunity to promote the Welsh Language and
cultures will be taken during the development of our campaigns.

Further actions
required There are no identified negatives.

Positive impacts identified:

People using Welsh

The proposed waste collection system is more aligned to those in the
other Welsh authorities. This consistency will assist in general
understanding in any language as families and friends communicate
beyond County boundaries. All communications, including the survey,
media releases and instructional information will be produced in Welsh as
well as English.

Promoting the Welsh
language

There is an opportunity to display bi-lingual advertisements with simple
messages/ catch phrases

Culture and heritage

In the longer term, once kerbside capture of materials is maximised,
there is an opportunity to promote re-use of kerbside materials and carry
out campaigns to extend the life of items through repair. This will
encourage people to learn traditional skills, such as sewing. There is also
an oppotrtunity to appeal to target audiences through tying together
traditional activities and recycling/re-use behaviours (e.g. A rugby player
recycling his old shirt, a sheep farmer recycling his working dogs' food
packaging etc...) Page 56Tudalen 88



Negative impacts identified:

People using Welsh NONE

Promoting the Welsh
language NONE

Culture and heritage NONE

A globally responsible Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

Justification for
impact

Positive overall as aligns with other North Wales LA's - developing
common resident experience and producing higher quality resources that
can stimulate local and national manufacturing opportunities.

Further actions
required

As part of design and communications around collections model change
Denbighshire will learn from experience at Conwy CBC and from all
previous service changes in Wales and wider afield, through data held by
WRAP (Waste Resources Action Programme)

Positive impacts identified:

Local, national,
international supply
chains

The baseline waste model produces low quality recycling which has limited
markets, often oversees. This option produces source segregated material
which can be used by local and national manufacturing companies.

Human rights NONE

Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

By making the proposed changes the waste collection model in
Denbighshire will more closely align with others across North Wales,
including specifically Conwy CBC therefore making any option for Service
of Council mergers in future a simpler task

Negative impacts identified:

Local, national,
international supply
chains

Initially there will be a drop in the volume of some non-target plastic that
is currently being marketed but the benefits of producing cleaner material
far outweigh this.

Human rights

To support the introduction of the new scheme, the Council will be
reviewing its waste enforcement policies to ensure the scheme is
regulated. The Council will, in all cases act in accordance with the
Regulators Code (2014).

Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

NONE

Page 57Tudalen 89



This page is intentionally left blank

Tudalen 90



 

Adroddiad i’r Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau 

Dyddiad y cyfarfod 29 Mehefin 2023 

Pennaeth Gwasanaeth Lisa Jones, Pennaeth Dros Dro y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol 

a Democrataidd  

Awdur yr adroddiad Karen Evans, Cydlynydd Craffu 

Teitl Rhaglen Waith Craffu   

1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn? 

1.1 Mae’r adroddiad yn gofyn i’r Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad adolygu ei raglen 

gwaith i’r dyfodol (gweler y drafft yn Atodiad 1).  Wrth wneud hynny gofynnir i’r 

Pwyllgor fyfyrio ynghylch sut y gall Craffu gyfrannu at gyflawni Cynllun 

Corfforaethol y Cyngor a’i nod o ddod yn ddi-garbon net ac yn ecolegol 

gadarnhaol erbyn 2030, gan hefyd roi blaenoriaeth i’r materion hynny y mae’r 

Pwyllgor o’r farn ei bod yn bwysig craffu arnynt. 

2. Beth yw’r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn? 

2.1 Gofyn i’r Pwyllgor adolygu a chytuno ar ei raglen gwaith i’r dyfodol, a rhoi’r 

wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i aelodau ar faterion perthnasol. 

3. Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 

Bod y Pwyllgor yn  

3.1  ystyried y wybodaeth a ddarparwyd ac yn cymeradwyo ei raglen gwaith i’r 

dyfodol, ei diwygio neu’i newid fel y gwêl yn briodol;  

3.2 penodi cynrychiolydd i wasanaethu ar y Grŵp Her Gwasanaeth ar gyfer y 

Gwasanaethau Cynllunio, Gwarchod y Cyhoedd a Chefn Gwlad; ac 

3.3  penderfynu a ddylid rhoi cyhoeddusrwydd i unrhyw negeseuon neu themâu 

allweddol o’r cyfarfod cyfredol yn y wasg a/neu’r cyfryngau cymdeithasol. 

  

Tudalen 91

Eitem Agenda 7



 
 

4. Manylion yr adroddiad  

 

4.1 Mae Erthygl 7 o Gyfansoddiad Cyngor Sir Ddinbych yn pennu cylch gorchwyl, 

swyddogaethau ac aelodaeth pob Pwyllgor Craffu, yn ogystal â rheolau 

gweithdrefnau a thrafodaethau.    

 

4.2 Yn ôl y Cyfansoddiad mae’n rhaid i bob un o bwyllgorau craffu’r Cyngor bennu 

rhaglen ar gyfer ei waith i’r dyfodol a’i hadolygu’n rheolaidd.  Trwy adolygu a 

blaenoriaethu materion, gall aelodau sicrhau bod y rhaglen waith yn cyflwyno 

agenda a arweinir gan yr aelodau. 

 

4.3 Ers rhai blynyddoedd bellach mae’n arfer yn Sir Ddinbych nad yw pwyllgorau 

craffu’n ystyried mwy na phedwar o adroddiadau mewn unrhyw gyfarfod, yn 

ogystal ag adroddiad ar raglen waith y Pwyllgor ei hun.  Diben hynny yw 

hwyluso trafodaeth fanwl ac effeithiol ar bob pwnc. 

 

4.4 Mewn blynyddoedd diweddar mae Llywodraeth Cymru ac Archwilio Cymru wedi 

tynnu sylw at yr angen i gryfhau’r swyddogaeth craffu mewn llywodraeth leol a 

gwasanaethau cyhoeddus yng Nghymru, gan gynnwys defnyddio craffu fel 

modd o ymgysylltu â phreswylwyr a defnyddwyr gwasanaethau.  O hyn allan, 

disgwylir i graffu ymgysylltu'n well ac yn amlach â'r cyhoedd gyda’r nod o 

sicrhau penderfyniadau gwell a fydd yn y pen draw yn arwain at well 

canlyniadau i ddinasyddion.  Bydd Archwilio Cymru yn mesur effeithiolrwydd 

craffu wrth gyflawni'r disgwyliadau hyn. 

 

4.5 Gan ystyried y weledigaeth genedlaethol ar gyfer craffu a chanolbwyntio ar yr 

un pryd ar flaenoriaethau lleol, argymhellodd y Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac Is-

gadeiryddion Craffu yn ddiweddar y dylai pwyllgorau archwilio’r Cyngor 

ganolbwyntio ar y meysydd allweddol canlynol wrth bennu eu rhaglenni gwaith: 

 arbedion ar y gyllideb; 

 cyflawni amcanion y Cynllun Corfforaethol (gyda phwyslais arbennig ar y 

modd o’u cyflawni yn ystod cyfnod o galedi ariannol);  

 unrhyw eitemau eraill y mae’r Pwyllgor Craffu (neu’r Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac 

Is-gadeiryddion Craffu) yn cytuno i roi blaenoriaeth uchel iddynt (yn seiliedig 

Tudalen 92



 
 

ar y meini prawf PAPER - gweler ochr gefn y ‘Ffurflen Cynnig gan Aelodau’ 

yn Atodiad 2); 

 materion brys, annisgwyl neu â blaenoriaeth uchel; 

 cefnogi gwaith adfer y Cyngor yn sgil effeithiau’r argyfwng COVID-19 ar 

wasanaethau’r Cyngor, yr economi leol a chymunedau’r sir. 

 

4.6 Ffurflenni Cynnig ar gyfer Craffu 

 Fel y crybwyllwyd ym mharagraff 4.2 uchod, mae Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor yn 

gofyn i bwyllgorau craffu baratoi rhaglenni ar gyfer eu gwaith i’r dyfodol a’u 

hadolygu.  Er mwyn cynorthwyo’r broses o flaenoriaethu adroddiadau, os yw’r 

swyddogion o’r farn fod pwnc yn deilwng o’r amser i’w drafod ar raglen fusnes y 

Pwyllgor, mae’n rhaid iddynt wneud cais ffurfiol i’r Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac Is-

gadeiryddion Craffu i ystyried derbyn adroddiad ar y pwnc hwnnw.  Gwneir hyn 

trwy gyflwyno ‘ffurflen gynnig’ sy’n egluro pwrpas craffu ar y pynciau a 

awgrymir, pwysigrwydd hynny a’r canlyniadau posibl. 

 

4.7 Er mwyn defnyddio amser craffu’n well drwy ganolbwyntio adnoddau pwyllgorau 

ar archwilio pynciau’n fanwl, gan ychwanegu gwerth drwy’r broses benderfynu a 

sicrhau gwell canlyniadau ar gyfer preswylwyr, penderfynodd y Grŵp 

Cadeiryddion ac Is-gadeiryddion Craffu y dylai’r aelodau, yn ogystal â 

swyddogion, lenwi 'ffurflenni cynnig ar gyfer craffu’ yn egluro pam eu bod o’r 

farn y byddai’r pwnc yn elwa ar gyfraniad craffu.  Fel y soniwyd uchod mae copi 

o’r ‘ffurflen cynnig gan aelodau’ i’w weld yn Atodiad 2.  Ar gefn y ffurflen hon 

mae siart lif sy’n rhestru’r cwestiynau y dylai aelodau eu hystyried wrth gynnig 

eitem i graffu arnynt ac y dylai pwyllgorau eu gofyn wrth benderfynu a yw pwnc 

yn addas testun i’w gynnwys ar y rhaglen gwaith i’r dyfodol.  Os dilynir y broses 

hon a phenderfynu nad yw’r testun yn addas i bwyllgor craffu ei archwilio’n 

ffurfiol, yna gellir ystyried ffyrdd eraill o rannu’r wybodaeth neu archwilio’r mater, 

fel darparu ‘adroddiad gwybodaeth’, er enghraifft, neu os yw’r mater yn un lleol 

iawn gall y Grŵp Ardal Aelodau perthnasol graffu arno.  Ni chaiff unrhyw 

eitemau eu cynnwys ar raglen gwaith i’r dyfodol heb lenwi ‘ffurflen gynnig ar 

gyfer craffu’ a chael cymeradwyaeth y Pwyllgor neu’r Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac Is-

gadeiryddion Craffu i’w cynnwys ar y rhaglen.  Mae’r Cydlynydd Craffu yn 

medru cynorthwyo â llenwi’r ffurflenni.   

  

Tudalen 93



 
 

   

 

 Rhaglen Gwaith i’r Dyfodol y Cabinet 

4.8 Wrth bennu eu rhaglenni gwaith i’r dyfodol mae’n fuddiol i’r pwyllgorau craffu 

ystyried amserlen waith y Cabinet.  At hynny, amgaeir copi o raglen gwaith i’r 

dyfodol y Cabinet yn Atodiad 3.  

5. Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac Is-gadeiryddion Craffu 

5.1 Dan drefniadau craffu’r Cyngor mae’r Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac Is-gadeiryddion 

Craffu yn gweithredu fel pwyllgor cydlynu.  Mae cyfarfod nesaf y Grŵp wedi'i 

drefnu ar gyfer 25 Gorffennaf 2023. 

6. Cynrychioliaeth y Pwyllgor ar Fyrddau a Grwpiau'r Cyngor 

Grwpiau Her ar gyfer Gwasanaethau’r Cyngor 

6.1 O bryd i'w gilydd gofynnir i'r Pwyllgor benodi cynrychiolwyr i wasanaethu aramrywiol 

Fyrddau neu Grwpiau o fewn y Cyngor. Ar hyn o bryd mae angen i'r Pwyllgor 

benodi cynrychiolydd i wasanaethu ar y Grŵp Her ar gyfer y Gwasanaethau 

Cynllunio, Gwarchod y Cyhoedd a Chefn Gwlad. Gofynnir i'r Pwyllgor benodi 

cynrychiolydd i wasanaethu ar y Grŵp hwn er mwyn sicrhau rhestr gyflawn o 

gynrychiolwyr ar y grwpiau her ar gyfer y gwasanaethau. Mae’r rhestr gyfredol o 

gynrychiolwyr ar y Grwpiau Her Gwasanaeth i’w weld yn Atodiad 4. 

7. Sut mae’r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at Gynllun 
Corfforaethol 2022 i 2027: y Sir Ddinbych a Garem? 

7.1 Bydd craffu effeithiol yn cynorthwyo’r Cyngor i gyflawni ei Gynllun Corfforaethol 

yn unol ag anghenion cymunedau a dymuniadau preswylwyr.   Bydd datblygu 

ac adolygu’r rhaglen waith gydlynol yn barhaus yn cynorthwyo’r Cyngor i 

gyflawni ei flaenoriaethau corfforaethol a gwella’r canlyniadau i breswylwyr wrth 

ddygymod hefyd â thoriadau llym yn y gyllideb a gwasgfeydd ar adnoddau. 

7.2 Er bod penderfynu ynghylch rhaglen gwaith i’r dyfodol y Pwyllgor ynddo’i hun yn 

gyfraniad niwtral at nod y Cyngor o ddod yn ddi-garbon net ac yn ecolegol 

Tudalen 94



 
 

gadarnhaol erbyn 2030, bydd craffu’n effeithiol ar yr holl faterion a ddaw 

gerbron y Pwyllgor yn helpu i gyflawni’r uchelgais honno. 

8. Faint fydd hyn yn ei gostio a sut y bydd yn effeithio ar 
wasanaethau eraill? 

8.1 Efallai y bydd yn rhaid i wasanaethau neilltuo amser swyddogion i gynorthwyo’r 

Pwyllgor â’r eitemau a nodir yn y rhaglen waith ac unrhyw gamau gweithredu yn 

sgil ystyried yr eitemau hynny.  

9. Beth yw prif gasgliadau’r Asesiad o Effaith ar Les? 

9.1 Ni chynhaliwyd Asesiad o Effaith ar Les ar gyfer yr adroddiad hwn na’i gynnwys.  

Bydd y Pwyllgor Archwilio, fodd bynnag, drwy ei waith yn archwilio darpariaeth 

gwasanaethau, polisïau, gweithdrefnau ac argymhellion, yn ystyried eu heffaith 

neu eu heffaith posib ar yr egwyddor datblygu cynaliadwy a’r amcanion llesiant 

a nodir yn Neddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015. 

10. Pa ymgyngoriadau sydd wedi’u cynnal gyda Chraffu ac 
eraill? 

10 Nid oedd yn ofynnol ymgynghori ynghylch yr adroddiad hwn.  Mae’r adroddiad 

ei hun, fodd bynnag, ac ystyriaeth y Pwyllgor ohono, yn gyfystyr ag ymgynghori 

â’r Pwyllgor ynghylch ei raglen waith. 

11. Pa risgiau sydd ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i’w 
lleihau? 

11.1 Ni chanfuwyd unrhyw risg ynglŷn â’r Pwyllgor yn ystyried ei raglen waith.  Drwy 

adolygu ei raglen gwaith i’r dyfodol yn rheolaidd, fodd bynnag, gall y Pwyllgor 

sicrhau ei fod yn ystyried ac archwilio unrhyw risgiau a ddaw i’r amlwg a 

gwneud argymhellion er mwyn ymdrin â’r risgiau hynny. 

12. Pŵer i wneud y penderfyniad 

12.1 Adran 21 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000. 

12.2 Yn ôl Adran 7.11 o Gyfansoddiad y Cyngor bydd y pwyllgorau craffu ac/neu’r 

Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac Is-gadeiryddion Craffu’n gyfrifol am bennu eu rhaglenni 

Tudalen 95



 
 

gwaith eu hunain gan ystyried dymuniadau’r Aelodau hynny o’r Pwyllgor nad 

ydynt yn Aelodau o'r grŵp gwleidyddol mwyaf ar y Cyngor. 

Tudalen 96



Communities Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan 

Note: Items entered in italics have not been approved for submission by the Committee.  Such reports are listed here for information, pending 
formal approval. 
 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date Entered 

29 June        

     (i)    

        

 Cllr. Barry 
Mellor 

1 New Waste 
Collections 
Policy, 
Communication 
Plan. 

To examine in 
detail the updated 
Waste Collections 
Policy. The 
communication 
and engagement 
plan and the 
progress of the 
new service roll out 
- specifically the 
impending 
implementation of 
the new AHP 
Service and and 
update to waste 
service changes 
for non-standard 
households.  

Identification of any gaps or 
omissions in the updated Policy and 
the proposed Communication & 
Engagement Plan with residents will 
help the Service to address any 
shortfalls ahead of their 
implementation, thus ensuring a 
smooth rollout of the new service and 
residents’ buy-in to the new waste 
and recycling service that will support 
the Council’s ambition in relation to 
carbon reduction. 

Tony Ward/ 
Andy Clark/ 
Jamie Lees/ 
Lowri Roberts  

By SCVCG 
March 2023 

        

7 
September  

Cllr. Elen 
Heaton 

1. Engagement 
with Care 
Forum Wales 
(CFW) & Care 
Providers in 
Denbighshire  

To examine the 
progress made in 
encouraging CFW 
and local social 
care providers to 
engage with the 
Council in relation 
to social care 

The establishment of open 
communication channels between 
care providers, their representative 
body and local authorities locally and 
regionally for the purpose of setting 
realistic and fair fees for social care 
provision which is based on up to 
date verified data 

Nicola 
Stubbins/David 
Soley 

By SCVCG 
January 2023 

T
udalen 97



Communities Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date Entered 

provision and the 
setting of fees 

 Cllr. Win 
Mullen-James 
 
Extend invite to 
Cllr Peter Scott 
(Chair of T&F 
Group) 

2 GTAA 
 
 

To review the 
revised 
assessment prior 
to its being 
submitted to Welsh 
Government 

Members’ views and observations are 
sought on the detail of the work 
carried out and the revision of the 
previously submitted GTAA. 

Kimberley 
Mason 

23/05/23 

 Leader 3 Rhyl 
Regeneration 
Programme and 
Governance 
 
 

To examine the 
effectiveness of the 
Programme 
Board’s work in 
delivering the 
regeneration 
programme to date 

Identification of any barriers or 
slippages and the formulation of 
recommendations to try and address 
them and sustain the delivery of the 
programme to secure the 
regeneration of Rhyl to benefit the 
economy and the lives of the town’s 
residents and the county in general  

Emlyn 
Jones/Nicola 
Kneale/Lois 
Lambie 

June 2022 
 

        

19 October Cllr. Barry 
Mellor 

1. New Waste 
Service Model – 
Progress 
Report  

To examine the 
progress in relation 
to the activities 
associated with 
rollout of the new 
Service (incl.  

 An update on 
the 
implementation 
of the main 
service change 

 update on the 
implementation 
of the AHP 
Service 

Identification of actions or resolutions 
to any gaps or obstacles encountered 
to date with the rollout process with a 
view to addressing them in time to 
secure a seamless rollout of the new 
Service and ensure residents’ buy-in 
and compliance with the new waste 
and recycling service which will 
support the Council’s ambition in 
relation to carbon reduction. 

Tony Ward/ 
Andy Clark/ 
Jamie Lees/ 
Lowri Roberts 

By SCVCG 
March 2023 

T
udalen 98



Communities Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date Entered 

 

        

7 
December 

Cllr. Win 
Mullen-James 

1. Second Homes 
and Short-term 
Holiday lets  
and their impact 
have been fully 
assessed) 
 
(timing tbc – 
once the full 
details of the 
WG proposals 
are known (incl. 
Licensing 
Scheme 
proposals) 
 
 

To report the 
findings and 
conclusions of the 
Welsh 
Government’s 
study in relation to 
addressing the 
impact of second 
home ownership in 
Wales, including its 
proposals for 
reviewing the 
regulatory 
framework and 
system as they 
apply to holiday 
accommodation, 
along with national 
and local taxation 
systems (the WG’s 
“three-pronged 
approach to 
address [the] 
second homes 
crisis” 

(i) An assessment of the proposals’ 
anticipated impact on 
Denbighshire County Council, 
residents, businesses and local 
economy 

(ii) Formulation of recommendations 
with a view to realising maximum 
benefits for the Council, residents 
businesses and the economy, or 
for mitigating the impact of any 
risks that may arise from any 
proposals 

Emlyn 
Jones/Angela 
Loftus/Lara 
Griffiths/Paul 
Barnes/Gareth 
Roberts 

June 2022 
(rescheduled 
November 
2022/ March 
2023) 

 
 
Future Issues 
 

T
udalen 99



Communities Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

 Update on the Draft Tourism signage 
Strategy 

To provide an update on progress 
in regard to brown tourist direction 
sign projects within Denbighshire 

Mike Jones/Peter 
McDermot 

09/05/23 

     

     

 
For future years 
 

 
 

    

  

T
udalen 100



Communities Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan 

Information/Consultation Reports 
 

Information / 
Consultation 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Author(s) Date Entered 

INFORMATION 
(for circulation early 
autumn 2023 once 

work has been 
undertaken) 

Community Impact Assessment 
on the communities of Rhewl 
and Llanynys 

To present the findings of the community 
impact assessment undertaken following 
the closure of Ysgol Rhewl as agreed as 
part of the modernising education 
programme 

Geraint Davies/James Curran December 
2020 

 
Note for officers – Committee Report Deadlines 
 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

4 May 19 April (due to 
B/H) 

29 June 15 June 7 September 23 August (due to 
B/H) 

 
06/062023 KE 

T
udalen 101



M
ae tudalen hw

n yn fw
riadol w

ag



 

Atodiad 2 

Ffurflen Gynnig ar gyfer Rhaglen Gwaith i’r Dyfodol Craffu 
 

 
ENW'R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU 
 

 

 
AMSERLEN I'W HYSTYRIED 
 

 

 
TESTUN   
 

 

 
Beth sydd angen ei graffu arno (a 
pham)? 
 

 
 
 

 
Ydi’r mater yn un o bwys i 
drigolion/busnesau lleol? 
 

 
YDI/NAC YDI 

 
Ydi craffu yn gallu dylanwadu ar bethau 
a’u newid?  
(Os 'ydi' nodwch sut rydych chi’n meddwl y 
gall craffu ddylanwadu neu newid pethau) 
 

 
YDI/NAC YDI 

 
 
 

 
Ydi’r mater yn ymwneud â gwasanaeth 
neu faes sy’n tanberfformio? 
 

 
YDI/NAC YDI 

 
Ydi’r mater yn effeithio ar nifer fawr o 
drigolion neu ardal fawr o’r Sir?  
(Os 'ydi', rhowch syniad o faint y grŵp neu’r 
ardal yr effeithir arni) 
 

 
YDI/NAC YDI 

 
 
 

Ydi’r mater yn gysylltiedig â themau 
corfforaethol y Cyngor? 
(Os 'ydi' nodwch pa thema(u)) 
 

 
YDI/NAC YDI 

 

 
Hyd y gwyddoch, oes yna rywun arall yn 
edrych ar y mater hwn? 
(Os 'oes', nodwch pwy sy'n edrych arno) 
 

 
OES/NAC OES 

 

Os derbynnir y testun ar gyfer craffu, 
pwy fyddai arnoch chi eisiau eu 
gwahodd e.e. Aelod Arweiniol, 
swyddogion, arbenigwyr allanol, 
defnyddwyr y gwasanaeth? 

 

 
Enw'r Cynghorydd/Aelod Cyfetholedig 
 

 

Tudalen 103



 

 
Dyddiad 

 

 

Ystyried addasrwydd pwnc ar gyfer craffu 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NA (dim cam gweithredu nac adroddiad 

gwybodaeth pellach) 

 

 

Ffurflen Gynnig / Cais a dderbyniwyd 

(dylid rhoi ystyriaeth ofalus i’r rhesymau dros wneud cais) 

 Ydi o’n bodloni’r gofynion canlynol? 

 Diddordeb Cyhoeddus – ydi’r mater o bwys i drigolion? 

 Effaith– fedr craffu yn gael effaith ar bethau a’u newid? 

 Perfformiad – ydi o’n wasanaeth neu faes sy’n tanberfformio? 

 Graddfa – ydi o’n effeithio ar nifer o drigolion neu ardal 

ddaearyddol fawr? 

 Ailadrodd – ydi’r mater yn destun craffu/ymchwiliad gan berson 

neu gorff arall? 

 

 Penderfynu ar y canlyniadau a ddymunir  

 Penderfynu ar gwmpas a swmp y gwaith craffu sydd ei angen a’r dull mwyaf 

priodol o graffu (h.y. adroddiad pwyllgor, ymchwiliad grŵp tasg a gorffen neu 

aelod cyswllt ac ati) 

 Os penderfynir sefydlu grŵp tasg a gorffen, dylid penderfynu ar amserlen yr 

ymchwiliad, pwy fydd yn rhan o’r ymchwiliad, beth yw’r gofynion ymchwilio, a oes 

angen cyngor arbenigol a thystion, a beth yw’r trefniadau adrodd ac ati. 

YDI 

NAC 

YDI 

Dim gweithredu pellach gan y 

Pwyllgor Craffu. Gellir ei gyfeirio 

at gorff arall neu ofyn am 

adroddiad er gwybodaeth. 

Tudalen 104



Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

 

27 June 1 The Council acting as the Lead 
Body for the renewal of the 
Regional North Wales 
Domiciliary Care Agreement 

To seek Cabinet approval for 
Denbighshire County Council 
to act as the ‘Lead Body’ on 
an Invitation to Tender for 
Domiciliary Care & Support 
Services for Children / Young 
People and Adults 

Yes Cllr Gill German/Elen Heaton 
Lead Officers –Rhiain Morrlle 
/ David Soley / Ann Lloyd 
Report Author –Liana Duffy / 
John Williams / Llinos 
Howatson 

 2 Queen’s Market: operator 
contract award 

Following the culmination of 
the procurement process to 
appoint an operator for the 
Queen’s Market in Rhyl, 
approval is sought from 
Cabinet to award a contract 
to the preferred tenderer 

Yes Cllr Jason McLellan 
Lead Officer – Tony Ward / 
Emlyn Jones 
Report Author – Russell 
Vaughan 

 3 Welsh Language Strategy To seek Cabinet’s approval 
of a new Welsh Language 
Strategy 2023-2028 

Yes Cllr Emrys Wynne 
Lead Officer – Gary Williams 
Report Author – Manon Celyn 

 4 Commissioned Services for 
Homelessness 

To seek Cabinet’s 
authorisation to extend the 
current contract to allow 
more time to scope 
supported housing need in 
line with the new Rapid 
Rehousing model 

Yes Cllr Rhys Thomas 
Lead Officer – Ann Lloyd 
Report Author – Sharon 
Whalley / Hayley S Jones / 
Nigel Jones 

T
udalen 105



Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

 5 Council Performance Self-
Assessment 

To present an update on the 
council’s performance 
against its functions, 
including Corporate Plan and 
Strategic Equality objectives 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer – Nicola Kneale 
Report Author – Emma Horan 

 6 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Steve Gadd 

 7 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – Scrutiny 
Coordinator 

      

 

18 July 1 Long Term Empty and Second 
Homes Premium 

To provide members with 
information for their 
consideration, to review the 
recommendations and agree 
a way forward 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Steve Gadd / Paul Barnes / 
Leah Gray 

 2 Insurance Services Contract 
Award 

To seek Cabinet approval of 
the contract award 

Yes Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Steve Gadd / Chris Jones 

 3 Variation to a long-standing 
contract with Cynnig for the 
provision of staff to our in-house 
Work Opportunity Service 

To request approval to 
extend the contract held with 
Cynnig for a minimum term 
of 1 year, and a maximum 
term of 2 years 

Yes Cllr Elen Heaton 
Katie New / Alison Heaton 

T
udalen 106



Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

 4 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Steve Gadd 

 5 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – Scrutiny 
Coordinator 

      

 

19 
September 

1 Rhyl Business Improvement 
District (BID): ballot for 2nd 5-
year term 

To request a decision on 
whether DCC should vote 
“yes” or “no” in the ballot to 
determine whether there 
should be a 2nd 5-year term 
for the Rhyl BID 

Yes Cllr Jason McLellan 
Lead Officer – Tony Ward 

 2 Ysgol Plas Brondyffryn – New 
Build Project 

To seek Cabinet 
endorsement of the preferred 
site for the progression of the 
new build project for Ysgol 
Plas Brondyffryn 

Yes Cllr Gill German 
Lead Officer – Geraint Davies 
Report Author – James 
Curran / Lisa Walchester 

 3 North Wales Velodrome 
Business Case 

To consider the business 
case for the North Wales 
Velodrome Project 

Tbc Cllr Rhys Thomas 
Gary Williams / Jamie Groves 

 4 Annual Treasury Management 
Review Report 2022/23 

To give a review of the 
Treasury Management 
activities over the previous 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer – Steve Gadd 
Report Author – Rhys Ifor 

T
udalen 107



Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

financial year (2022/23) Jones 

 5 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Steve Gadd 

 6 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – Scrutiny 
Coordinator 

      

 

24 October 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Steve Gadd 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – Scrutiny 
Coordinator 

      

 

21 
November 

1 Care Home Fee Setting 
2024/25 

To brief Cabinet on the 
outcome of the Regional 
2024/25 Care Home Fee 
Setting process and seek 
approval for Denbighshire’s 
response to its 
recommendation 

Yes Cllr Elen Heaton 
Lead Officer / Report Author – 
Nicola Stubbins / David Soley 

 2 Council Performance Self- To present an update on the Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 

T
udalen 108



Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

Assessment Update – July to 
September 

council’s performance 
against its functions, 
including Corporate Plan and 
Strategic Equality objectives 

Lead Officer – Nicola Kneale 
Report Author – Emma Horan 

 3 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Steve Gadd 

 4 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – Scrutiny 
Coordinator 

      

 

Note for officers – Cabinet Report Deadlines 
 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

27 June 13 June 18 July 4 July 19 Sept 5 Sept 
 
Updated 20/06/2023 – KEJ 
 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme.doc 

T
udalen 109



M
ae tudalen hw

n yn fw
riadol w

ag



Scrutiny Service Challenge Representatives 2023    Appendix 4 

 

Service: Communities  Partnerships Performance 

Adult Social Care & Homelessness 

HoS:  Ann Lloyd 

 

Councillor Alan James 

 

Councillor Joan Butterfield 

 

Councillor Carol Holliday 

Education & Children’s Services 

Geraint Davies & Rhiain Morelle 

 

Councillor Delyth Jones 

 

Councillor Jeanette Chamberlain-Jones 

 

Councillor Ellie Chard 

Planning, Public Protection & 
Countryside Services 

Emlyn Jones 

 

TBA 

 

Councillor Peter Scott 

 

Councillor Gareth Sandilands 

Highways & Environmental Services 

Andy Clark 

 

Councillor Jon Harland 

 

Councillor Pauline Edwards 

 

Councillor Terry Mendies 

Finance & Audit 

Steve Gadd 

 

Councillor James Elson 

 

Councillor Bobby Feeley 

 

Councillor Hugh Irving 

Housing & Communities 

Liz Grieve 

 

Councillor Cheryl Williams 

 

TBA 

 

Councillor Andrea Tomlin 

Corporate Support Service:  
Performance, Digital & Assets 

HoS:  to be appointed 

 

Councillor Brian Jones 

 

TBA 

 

Councillor Paul Keddie 

Corporate Support Service:  People   

HoS:  to be appointed 

 

Councillor Karen Edwards 

 

TBA 

 

Councillor Martyn Hogg 

T
udalen 111



M
ae tudalen hw

n yn fw
riadol w

ag


	Rhaglen
	2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD
	5 COFNODION
	6 Y WYBODAETH DDIWEDDARAF AM BROSIECT AILFODELU’R GWASANAETH GWASTRAFF
	Appendix 1 Household  Waste and Recycling Policy June 2023 DRAFT
	Appendix 2 AHP waste collections TC's and FAQs 20230516 FINAL
	DCC - AHP waste collections TCs 20230516 FINAL
	DCC - AHP waste collections FAQs 20230516 FINAL

	Appendix 3 WBIA
	5 PROPOSED NEW WASTE AND RECYCLING SERVICE DESIGN
	WASTE MODEL - Appendix II Well Being Impact Assesment New waste model
	OPTION 5 (Preferred) - Weekly Kerbside Sort (including food waste), 4-weekly residual, AHP service
	Well-being Impact Assessment Report
	IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
	Score for the sustainability of the approach
	Implications of the score
	Summary of impact
	Main conclusions
	Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

	THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE WORLD
	A prosperous Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A resilient Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A healthier Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A more equal Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A globally responsible Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:







	7 RHAGLEN WAITH ARCHWILIO
	Communities FWP - App 1
	FWP Proposal Form App2E
	Cabinet Forward Work Programme App3
	Committee Representatives App 4


